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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the AREHRA - B X EBBFTEI -
following expressions shall have the following meanings: )

“AGM”
[BERBEFXRE]

“Audit Committee”
[BxZE= ]

“Authorized Representative”

[N

“Board”

[E=R)

“Bye-Laws”
[ 48 ]

“CG Code”
[EEE AR

“Chairman”

[£/% ]

“Companies Act of Bermuda”
[BFREQRE]

“Companies Ordinance”
NS

“Company” or
“Landsea Green Management”

(AR s (B EE IR ]

“Company Secretary”

[RAME ]

“Controlling Shareholder”
[ 2 AR AR R

THAEREBUT
A

the annual general meeting of the Company

ARRBRBFAE

the audit committee of the Company

AprEZEZES

Authorised representative of the Company as required under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules
and the authorised representative of the Company for accepting on the Company’s behalf
service of process or notice to be served on the Company in Hong Kong under Part 16 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

TR AISE3.05 R EHN AR BIEEREK - URIBBEEEEDIE 622 & 2 FHEGIE 16 5
REARRANBEBEZE BRI R RIXEFNEERF X4 SRAM AR RREREK

the board of Directors

B/

the bye-laws of the Company, as amended from time to time
RRTE AR BRI (ETEHEET)

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
TR B EE-OEr R (b X B VA <P A

the chairman of the Board
EEREF

the Companies Act of Bermuda, as amended from time to time
BAREQANEETREE])

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
B EDIE 622 Z N BHES

Landsea Green Management Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00106)

e BERARLAR  RERESMK T 2 BRAGF] - BN PBZ A ER = (G5
5% - 00106)

Company secretary of the Company as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules
LR AIES 28R EN AR B ARIME

have the meanings ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
AR EmARRETZRE

ﬂ Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022



“Director(s)”

=3

“Easycorps”

[ Easycorps |

“ESG”

[ESG]

“ESG Committee”

[ESGZE®

“Executive Committee”
[MITZEZ

“FY2022"
[T - —BBFE ]

“GFA”
[32EEETE

“Greensheid”

[ Greensheid |

“Group!!
NS

“Hong Kong”

(&8 ]

“Landsea Group” or
“Landsea Holdings”

[BARFER ] =k [BARFIERY ]

“Landsea Green Life”

[BARHAR B AR

DEFINITIONS

the directors of the Company

RRABIZES

Easycorps Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian

Easycorps Group Limited * RIEBHEB R SHMKZc BRAF AALAEEEEREHE
B

Environmental, social and governance

RIE g kER

The ESG Committee of the Company
KAFIESGEZE®

the executive committee of the Company
AAFIMITLZESR

the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-_T-—F+-_A=+—RI1FF

gross floor area
EEmEE

Greensheid Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, and a company indirectly wholly-owned by Landsea Group

Greensheid Corporation * REBHR A BESAMN L BR AR - AAFEEMEEE2E
wa

the Company and its subsidiaries

EAN/NI)S By -EpN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEBRRITRR

Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (BA&FEEIR {5 AR 2 7)), a company established in the PRC and
the Controlling Shareholder of the Company
AR SR E R BRAR] - RARBIR S 2 AR RAR RIIERAR R

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1965)

BIFGeEERBERAR  RRSHESTEMKIZBRRAT » HRMHNBEZMER L
M (BRH 5% - 1965)

WIRFsk A RAT —— “F AR



DEFINITIONS
T 3%

“Landsea Homes”

[Landsea Homes |

“Landsea International”

[ Landsea International |

“Listing Rules”
[ LR R

“Model Code”
ST

“Mr. Tian”
[ A& ]

“NASDAQ”
[ 4Tz ]

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2RBg

“PRC”
(B

“Project Management Services”

[P 2R

“Remuneration Committee”

[FHZE2 ]

“Restricted Share(s)”

(BRI 1B 7

“RMB”
[AR®]

Landsea Homes Corporation, a company incorporated under the State of Delaware in the
USA and the common stock of which are listed on NASDAQ, and is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (symbols: LSEA)

Landsea Homes Corporation + FAEBIFF M MK A AR T @R mEER
W WRRATNIFZEMBLE (FHNRE : LSEA)

Landsea International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and indirectly wholly-owned by Landsea Group

Landsea International Holdings Limited * AR BH#B RS EMAZ 2 BR AR - AP
SERE2EES

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt 22 P g 25 R Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
AR+ FrE LT BT AESETRE SRR LETH

Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman, an executive Director and the Controlling Shareholder

MEALE £ - JITEFHRITBR

National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations capital market

XE2ERESFXZEHEEPREELTS

the nomination committee of the Company

ARRIZRBERES

the People’s Republic of China
hE AR A

Project development and management services

A B A3 R B IR RS

the remuneration committee of the Company

ARRlZHMEES

the Shares granted or to be granted under the Share Award Scheme which are subject to
restrictions

RIB R D SR B h =i IR 2 ZRBIA D

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AREE - hB 2 EEEH

H Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022



“SFO”
[ 5875 K AR RB ]

“Share(s)”
[ &7 |

“Share Award Scheme”

[ R An B2 RhsT &1

“Share Option Scheme 2012”
[—E—_—FEREE

“Share Option Scheme 2022”
[—E - _FEREE

“SPAC”
[SPAC

“sq.m.”

355K

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 P

“United States”
EE0

Us”
E=d

DEFINITIONS

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
BAEDE 571 EEH KB GG

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company
RABIRAFREGREEOC.O01 BT B

the restricted share award scheme of the Company adopted on 2 July 2014
RATRZE—F+ A = BN 2 2R HIAR 7D 228 &

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 25 April 2012
AARIRZE——FWNA-+HAAFRHZ BAETE

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 30 June 2022

ARBR B _FRA=TARMN 2 BRERTE

special purpose acquisition company

SN VNG

square meters

55k

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARIMBERAT

the United States of America
EHBAEFEH

United States dollars, the lawful currency of United States

XL XBEEEEH

WIRFsk A RAT —— “F AR n
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Major Events and Accolades of
Landsea Green Management in 2022

FAk O F20224F K Hr Bl 4 4

29

<! ITE
HABI 1 A™
AWARL
PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
'SOCIAL FORCES SET UP SCIENCE 8TECHNOLOGY AWARDS
g ARAE
HENBGINFRAR
RBERFRAR

FeHN R

wZA
HREARAE
wENX

2022 EFEWTL G REEERA L

/ Bk

CORPORATE’S ACCOLADES OR AWARDS IN 2022 F R EIM R B HRIE -
2022:

e On 1 July, the Hangzhou branch of Landsea Green Management o 7 818 » db 8= B T IR IE TR
was awarded the title of “Outstanding Real Estate EEEMMA T [2022F1-6 A IEE M
Management Enterprise in Zhejiang from January to June EREBEFLE|BEY -

2022 (2022F1-6 AT I B EREBFE L F)” by Beijing
China Index Academy.

o On 28 September, Le Mansion of Landsea in Zhangjiagang e 9A28H ' REABEMEERKE TFHIFSEE
managed by Landsea Green Management was awarded the IBRFBEAGFEITIER (2022 FERFEBRHE
“2022 Role Model for Technological Residential in 1EEEEE | -

Zhangjiagang (20225 ERXBR K HEE) by
Zhangjiagang Real Estate Observation (3R K/ EF b EE ).

. On 23 November, the result of the “19th Elite Habitat Award e 11 H238 ' [ETNERBHEABEZEIBHER -

(FTNERBHAE )" was announced with Landsea Green BIFREEREERNERR T [REMtERE
Management awarded the “Outstanding Enterprise along Green EEHE] -

Supply Chain (4x & E# (2 EF )" for the fourth year

consecutively.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022



MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2022

2S5zl evs

REMSE B IRE AR B~ B

THE 10th GLOBAL CHINESE REAL ESTATE SUMMIT

On 1 December, the Yale Yunting (#24Z52) project was
honoured with the “Ideal, Green and Healthy Residence in
Jiangsu Province (IHEZCREREHEE) and the
“Outstanding Residence of Technology in Jiangsu (L& #&
BMEREEEFEE).

On 5 December, Landsea Green Management was awarded the
“2022 Valuable Property Management Enterprise Achieving
Synergy through Cooperation (2022F b ERZH Al HE
B #)”, and the Gaolijing Huafu (& HIBEE) project of
Landsea was awarded the “2022 Green and Healthy
Residence in China (2022F EFE#ZEREEE)" at the
“Tenth Global Chinese Real Estate Ceremony on ifeng.com (BLEl
ME+IERREATBERS).

On 19 December, Landsea Green Management won the “Best
ESG Award (&{EESG#E)” at the “Seventh Listed Company
Selection by Zhitongcaijing (55 fE £ @I 4L £ A RFHE)” held
in Hangzhou.

BHES 4 A FH 20224 K S sp B 4

A DI

RBME+ELIREAF =B

THE 10th GLOBAL CHINESE REAL ESTATE SUMMIT

BRI

2022 Et =R 2 81

@ .559.5-

IFENG.COM

e 12A1R HEEEBEEXRENIHKEKRER

RRBREE NOIHENREEEREE] -

e 12A5R EIBEEE+EZREANTHE

BH| b ARG EEIRAE 2022 F P E
EREBAAHEELE] MAFSHIBEER
HEE (2022 FEHERBREEE] -

e 12A19H EMMERNELEEBME

EHRARFE] - B3t [ &E
ESGZE | -

MR OEIMARAR —— S TFEER



MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2022

BHEG Ak (O B 20224F KR Bl 25 4

—— .-
@ 20225 E =ML iFik

% 3R B R

ANNUAL URBAN QUALITY MODEL REAL ESTATE

PREREE XEE R%%
b ClDzzBR WERES

‘A

2022-2023FFRFRHETR
SRR

aw B BEs®

e On 3 January 2023, the New County (¥72F) project of Landseain o 202341 A3H ' E [2022 BB EEEITE

Wuxi managed by Landsea Green Management was awarded MR b AR REGMFNEE
the “Most Influential Award of the Year (FE & B & H18) BT  FERAEFE NS 81F -

at the “2022 Online Selection in relation to Real Estate Industry
by Tencent Marketing Solution (2022 E S EETTE M T

”

&),

e On 11 January 2023, the Changshu Shangjing Mingzhu project ® 202341 A 118 » 7 [2022 % 2\ = #b E R 48

managed by Landsea Green Management was awarded the FE R NS CEETAMRREBEEE
“Annual Role Model for Urban Property Quality (5 E 5 & FIEERTREASES] -

B ST AR)” at the “2022 Online Selection of Real Estate in
Changshu (2022 F #A 5 b EE 4848 51 i8)”

e On 17 January 2023, Le Mansion of Landsea in Zhangjiagang e 202341 A17 B » 7 [ &N b ER 5K S 18 1

managed by Landsea Green Management won the “2022-2023 Bl AFGeERRIBAFLENIER &
Annual Quality Technological Residence Award (2022-2023 T [2022-2023 FEmEBERFHEERE] -

FERERNEEEEE) at the “Suzhou Grammy Awards
Ceremony for Real Estate (&) ih FE & 3 HR 2 B2,

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022



MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2022

Ak (O BE20224F K AT B AR

60 AR RREERAT) 310 Wit (WD) RHBWRAT

_ 61 PHEMEETFRNEARAT 311 EEDREESRR (F) ROBRLAE

lnhwy“ LYEr YLty T : & EBRGERAT 312 R EEARAR
morcemiy  Matters '

_ 63 LERIEFARAR 313 ERPTIRKEARAE
Success In All That You Do 64 SR REERAT) 314 BIBRBEFARLE
65 RIERE (E) ARAR 315 HARERGERAT
66 RBARSEF 316
67 BERERGARAT 317 RUBIEESEFRARAR
68 BRI (KE) BRAE 38 IS TR E)
69 319
70 0 (E) AL 320 SEREERERAR
7 Kt (KE) BRAE 321 RSB RAERAE
72 322
7 AR ARAE) 323 SHBAIRERIRAT

HERERBEEFFRERAE

MAJOR EVENTS IN 2022: 2022 F KER -

e On 19 January 2022, Landsea Homes completes the acquisition e 202241 419 H - Landsea Homes 52 i\ ¥ )%
of Hanover Family Builders (HFB), diversifying its geographic &5 & 2 78 (Hanover Family Builders (HFB)) #) 4
footprint in high-growth markets. B AeiERmSERNIEETZ Tt -

o On 29 March, the selection of the “2022 TOP500 Real Estate o 3P29H ' [2022E W ER B EEEE N
Developers with Comprehensive Strength (20225 Hb 2= 9 25 (> 2 TOP500] FE R RE4M - AR OETIELRE
4RA & HTOP500)” was released where Landsea Green BI60L ©

Management ranked the 76th.

WIRFsk A RAT —— “F AR



MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2022

BHEG Ak (O B 20224F KR Bl 25 4

#e | EBRE Eswn | 08| EseB ESR
ARERKE 51 01622.HK el ]
42 00119.HK {RFE LSRR 52 000090.5Z Pl
43 600663.5H B 53 01996.HK SABREF
44 00106.HK BRI 54 002314.5Z ALLRE
45 00604.HK YR 55 600675.5H sheftll
46 00B32HK WU 56 00B46HK BRRE
47 600565.5H o) 57 600736.5H it
48 600266.5H HEERR 58 000517.5Z REM
49 00563.HK st 59 06968.HK B Ei
R

4 01813.HK

00230.HK 600177.5H

e On 22 April, 2022, Landsea Homes won the Gold Award at e 202244 422 H - Landsea Homes {£ & 3
Arizona MAME Awards as a leader in residential construction in FTEEEENRKRE @ TBFEANMAME 58
the United States. FEESE

. On 28 April 2022, Landsea Homes was named as the 2022 e 20224 4 A28 H © Landsea Homes & &F 4 2022
Builder of the Year. FEERERER -

. On 26 May, Landsea Green Management ranked the 44th e 5826H  BESEERMENFREMEI 2022

among the “2022 Top 100 Listed Real Estate Companies with EHEFHARGEEENER] - BBFsge
Comprehensive Strength (2022F = F A RA&RE E N HAR) BEBYRE 444 -

released by Shanghai E-house China R&D Institute.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022



MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2022

BEREMSTRMG)
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10 FFE*

76

3

6.2

° On 27 May, Landsea Green Management released its 2021 ESG e
report, integrating the dual-carbon targets into its ESG
management system.

° On 21 July, a strategic cooperation agreement was signed e

between Landsea and Wuxi Metro Group for cooperate in
businesses such as residential development, commercial
operation and property renovation in between the parties.

° On 26 August, Landsea Real Estate was on the top of the “2022 e

TOP10 Role Models for Green and Low-Carbon Operations in
China (20227 Bl 4% & (K fix i & E 1T H#L 8 TOP10)” in the “2022
Report on TOP30 Indices regarding Green and Low-Carbon Real
Estate in China (20227 B4k & X Hjx 1 E 2 BITOP30#R &)" jointly
compiled and published by the magazine named “Chinese
Investment”, the Advisory Committee of the Investment
Association (& &%) and the Standard Ranking (1Z%E4E
£) in China.

B o ek (0,78 PR 202 2 4 K ol B A

5A27H - BAFF A& &8 %M 2021 FEESG
HE - BERBEMAESGERRR -

7TH21 B BARMES M EEERZEESE
e B RMEERE  AREE  WEX
EEXGHRREE -

8A26R ' FEH(FEIRE R - PEKER
SHEWNE AR A RS L MMC2022F
B 4% (3 (K R b EE 15 BRTOP30 3R &5 ) b » BA=Hits
EEER B [20227 B 4% 2 1K ik b FE 3B 17 B &
TOP10] HyfEH -

WIRFsk A RAT —— “F AR



MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2022

BHEG Ak (O B 20224F KR Bl 25 4

LR 3 SR =
BRoN (@)
/& Bt Ee2s

BxFR

\NTOT

r

0

L4 » -n
B & aH
g & L33
% T L 13
ki ] T
F 2 A&
L] L an

el 1]
WHEAOEED

° On 26 September, a strategic cooperation agreement was e
signed between Landsea and Wuxi Liangxi Urban Investment
Group ({85 22 Z % £ &), based upon which, Landsea Green
Management will cooperate extensively with Liangxi Urban
Investment (ZZ31%) in fields such as residential development,
commercial operation and property renovation.

° On 28 September, the exhibition center (Nanjing) for technological e
residence of Landsea was officially open to the public, recording
and displaying the history and achievements of the 18-year
development on technological residence of Landsea.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2022

Ak (O BE20224F K AT B AR

2022'Green Supply Chain & Climate Action Forum

RO SR

f[E, Jb& Beijing, China 2022-11-03

) (11} HEKNRI( H BOLL STIFTUNG
IPE @ SARATELL - RERS (8 sk rg

7

s

. On 3 November, Landsea was listed as TOP1 in the real estate e 11A3H  ARIREMNE EF' i (IPE)2022 F &

sector for the sixth year consecutively on the Green Supply Chain SEMEECITIIES  PAFEESE NFLERE
CITl Index by the Institute of Public and Environmental Affairs (IPE) Mo E 4B IS CITIE S TOPT ©
in year 2022.

WIRFsk A RAT —— “F AR



Chairman’s Statement

o

- , "~ TIAN MING FE#
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Chairman Z /&

MARKET OVERVIEW

The year 2022 was a “bottom year” for the Chinese real estate sector.
As we mentioned in last year’s chairman’s statement, the industry as a
whole entered into an “ice age” and will face long-term and deep-
seated restructuring. Even so, the recession over the past year has
been more severe than the market had anticipated, figures falling below
their bottom lines. We may find the sales scale of commodity housing
nationwide has been significantly narrowed down, when the
performance of the top 100 real estate enterprises has dropped by
more than 40%, and the number of real estate enterprises with value
higher than RMB100 billion reduced by half and real estate enterprises
encountered liquidity crises more frequently. The real estate industry is
evolving from the 1.0 model to the 2.0 model, while the old
development model of high leverage, fast turnaround and scalability will
be replaced by a new model of low leverage, professionalization and
quality improvement. Meanwhile, the international landscape is
complex and volatile, with major economic players in the world entering
a downward cycle under high inflation and continued increase of
interest rate.

OPERATION PERFORMANCE

In the past year, Landsea faced unprecedented challenges, but our
teams maintained their high spirits and no team was beaten. We fought
hard and achieved uneasy result. The contracted sales of “Landsea

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022

RETE

—E__FHPEEHETEMNS  RIAEZ
Flo EMBMAEEFOEFERETIRRA - BETT
FEATCOTH ] BEERHN O RENEBILH
o AMEII - BE-FRENEBREEDABL
THZSMEY  SHBEBERFESR - 2BEMmEHE
EREEY  aARFOFEREBEBRUNX  TEREE
ERY  FEARRPLEEE - BHETEER
1.0RAM20REE - BENSER - REE -
HRRENERERN - BREER  BXE - mEL
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Products” amounted to approximately RMB22.3 billion with contracted
GFA of approximately 1.16 million sg.m.. The total revenue was
approximately RMB14.02 billion. During the period under review, the
Group overcame many obstacles and secured a total of 57 projects,
among which, 24 were in the PRC and 33 in the United States; and
achieved smooth delivery of over 16,000 houses in 29 projects in
China and over 2,000 houses in the United States during the year.

REAL ESTATE BUSINESS IN THE PRC

As a green development service provider, research and development
and construction capabilities for green buildings are the foundation of
the Company. Landsea persistently focuses on green products
differentiation to enhance its position as a green brand. As of the end
of 2022, we had built over 150 green residential projects in 36 cities
across the PRC with a green residential development area of over 25
million sg.m.. The Company has obtained a total of 104 green building
certifications in the PRC, of which 56 were green building three-star
certifications. The first green building three-star certification in 9 cities,
including Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangzhou and Suzhou, were obtained by
Landsea. We have obtained National Green Building Certification for
nearly 70% of our total projects. In addition, we have also obtained 21
top international certifications for green buildings, including BREEAM,
LEED and DGNB.
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Landsea devoted to building green homes. Since the debut of “Ark of
Freedom (B 7 A})”, a green healthy residence, in 2020, it has been
launched throughout 16 cities in the PRC with over 12,000 sets of
residence delivered as at the end of 2022. In 2022, the first project was
launched and equipped with Landsea’s latest technology system
“Healthy Fortress”, Nanjing Luxurious Mansion (F R ERZE/), achieving
a comprehensive upgrade in temperature, humidity, air purification and
other dimensions. Several newly acquired projects in 2023 will also be
built according to the Healthy Fortress system standard.

In 2022, Landsea secured a total of 24 projects in cities such as
Nanjing, Suzhou, Wuxi, Chengdu, Nantong, Xi’an and Tai’an, with an
additional saleable value of approximately RMB43.65 billion and an
additional saleable area of approximately 2.393 million sg.m.. As at the
end of 2022, the accumulated saleable value in the PRC amounted to
approximately RMB100 billion, approximately 85% of which were from
first-tier, new first-tier and second-tier cities N°* and nearly 80% of
which were from the Yangtze River Delta and the Greater Bay Area.

Over the years, Landsea has been exploring the path of transforming
from a traditional asset-heavy housing model to an asset-light model.
The year of 2022 can be regarded as a test for Chinese real estate
enterprises, and our differentiated development strategy was examined
in the past year. It was our ongoing strategic determination that helped
us to survive the most difficult times in the industry.

In 2022, out of the 24 projects obtained by the China real estate
business segment, 22 were projects for development and management
services (the “Project Management Services”), with total contracted
sales from the Project Management Services of approximately
RMB1.19 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
21.2%; the new Project Management Services projects have
contributed incremental saleable area of approximately 2.296 million
sg.m. and saleable value of approximately RMB40.92 billion, achieving
a year-on-year increase of 58.2%. As at the end of 2022, we provided
a total of 96 projects with Project Management Services and with
minority interests, when the total saleable area was approximately
5.088 million sg.m. and the estimated saleable value was
approximately RMB93.12 billion, representing approximately 93% of
the total value for the China region.

Note: The city classification criteria are derived from the 2022 Ranking of Cities’
Business Attractiveness (4 T 5 3 # 71 5F7715) published by the New First-tier
City Research Institute, a city data research project of Yicai (558 —814), on 1
June 2022.
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In 2022, Landsea Homes hit a record high on both sales and profits of
the business. However, the continued interest rate hikes resulted in the
decrease of the number of new orders from the second half of the year
and hence a decline in new house sales and a significant rise in
cancellations, which in turn had a negative impact on our performance
in the second half of the year. Nevertheless, our business in United
States were effectively and properly handled.

During the period, Landsea Homes had new projects in Florida with
saleable areas of approximately 985,000 sg.m. and the saleable value
was approximately RMB11.89 billion. As at the end of 2022, the
accumulated saleable value in the United States was approximately
RMB31.26 billion, of which approximately 41% was for Florida and
Texas together, approximately 30% was for California and
approximately 22% was for Arizona.

OUTLOOK

The scale of China’s real estate industry will remain at around RMB10
trillion and will remain one of the pillar industries of the national
economy, which laid our fundamental consideration on the industry’s
future. At the same time, the industry is still in transition and market
players are still struggling to survive. Landsea’s strategic transformation
for product differentiation, asset-light model transformation and
revenue diversification has started in 2014, and almost ten years has
passed. Last year, the Company officially changed its name to
“Landsea Green Management Limited” to more accurately reflect the
strategic positioning of an asset-light green development service
provider. Not only do we seek to become a green branded service
provider with strong operation capability, but also to be equipped with
investment capability to a certain extent in order to seize every good
market opportunity, so the Company’s profitability could grow. The
name change will be accompanied by a change in organisational
structure, adjustments to the staffing structure and incentive system.
We should not waste the opportunity presented in any single crisis.
2022 marked the biggest loss in our history, and it was a painful
experience for both Landsea and the industry as a whole. We all paid
the price for the recklessness and insolence. As the saying goes, “
Once bitten, twice shy”. We will remember the lesson and remain
fearful, exercise strict self-discipline, operate steadily and abide by the
rules of the industry. Despite all those obstacles, in the year of 2023,
we expect to get out of the darkness and get ready for the brightness.
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The theme for the Company in this year is a year of “going through the
cycle”, we are committed to getting through a glacial period. It is
estimated that 2023 will still be a difficult year for the industry as it is
still in a period of adjustment. However, due to the supportive
adjustment in real estate policy and the removal of the epidemic
prevention policy, we anticipate that 2023 will be slightly better than
the “bottom year” of 2022. In order to fight the battle for protecting
cash flow, survive and achieve sustainable development, we must have
bottom-line mindset; we must unify our thinking, work hard and fight
determinedly. We are striving to get out of trouble sooner and to get
through the cycle successfully.

In the Real Estate 2.0 era of low leverage, and emphasis on
professional segmentation and product services, we need to be
respectful to the market, understand the market situation in the correct
way, accurately capture market opportunities, enhance our investment
capabilities, and adhere to customer orientation and product
innovation. In the future, we are still confident enough to find the most
suitable development path by leveraging our unique advantages in the
new era. We believe that Landsea will be able to transform and
upgrade and iterate into a successful enterprise in the future market.

Tian Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Biographical Details of Directors

and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian was born on 24 January 1961. He was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director on 31 July 2013. He
is the chairman of the ESG Committee. He obtained an Executive
Master of Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School (“CEIBS”). Mr. Tian founded Landsea Group Co. Ltd.
(BAFFEBERHD AR A R) (‘Landsea”) in 2001. He is now the controlling
shareholder and also the Chairman and President of Landsea and its
subsidiaries (“Landsea Group”). Mr. Tian has more than 20 years’
extensive experience in the fields of competitive strategy, operation
management and property investment and development.

Mr. Tian initiated the “Green Supply Chain Act of Real Estate Industry”,
which aims to mitigate the negative effect of the industrial supply chain
on the environment by promoting green procurement.

Mr. Tian was a non-executive director and the chairman of Landsea
Green Life Service Company Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 1965) since 15 January
2021, he serves as the chairman of the board and a director of
Landsea Homes since January 2021 and he was an independent non-
executive director of Chervon Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 2285) since 8
December 2021.

Aged 40, was appointed as an executive director and chief executive
officer of the Company on 27 March 2020. He is also a member of the
ESG Committee. He graduated from Wuhan University in 2004, where
he obtained a bachelor degree of law and Sociology. He also received
a master degree in Sociology from the Law School of Tsinghua
University in 2007. Mr. Huang had worked for Huarun (Dalian) Co.,
Ltd., CITIC Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Hailiang Group Co., Ltd. as the
sales manager and general manager respectively. He has extensive
experience in sales and marketing and operation management in real
estate industry. Mr. Huang joined the Company in 2019 and served as
the vice president.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 48, is currently the board secretary of Landsea Group, the
Controlling Shareholder of the Company and has been appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 31 August
2022. She joined Landsea Group in 2007 and served as the accounting
department manager and tax department manager of Financial
Management Center, assistant of the general manager and officer of
the board of directors of Landsea Group. Ms. Gu obtained a bachelor
degree of accounting from Nanjing University of Science and
Technology. She is a Certified Public Accountant and a Certified Tax
Agent in China.

Aged 43, is the managing director of the asset management
department of Ping An Real Estate Company Limited (“‘Ping An”) and
has been appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 30 December 2022. Prior to joining Ping An in May 2022,
he worked in CapitaLand (China) as regional general manager. He has
over 15 years’ experience in real estate development industry,
commercial real estate investment, asset management, and
commercial development and operation. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from Hunan University of Science and
Technology (formerly known as Xiangtan Institute of Technology* (#/&
T &P%)) and a master’s degree in management science and
engineering from Wuhan University of Technology.

Aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 25 February
2022. He is the vice president and chief financial officer of Landsea
Group. Prior to joining the Landsea Group in 2021, he worked for well-
known corporations such as Longfor Group Holdings Limited, and was
the responsible officer of the group’s financial assets center. He has
over 20 years of experience in the finance and real estate industry. He
obtained a master’s degree in accounting from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and has obtained the Financial
Risk Management (FRM) qualification.

Mr. Xu has tendered his resignation as a non-executive Director with
effect from 31 August 2022 due to his personal affairs.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 30 June 2021
respectively. He is the managing director of the asset management
department of Ping An Real Estate Company Limited. Prior to joining
Ping An Real Estate Company Limited in 2015, he worked in China
Overseas Development Company Limited, Shenzhen Yitian Group Co.,
Ltd., COFCO Property Group and KWG Group Holding etc., well-
known property development companies, and had been an architect,
general manager of design department, group vice president. He has
over 27 years’ experience in the property development industry. He
obtained a Bachelor’s degree of urban planning in Tongji University and
possessed a Master’s degree of Central Academy of Fine Arts.

Mr. Liu has tendered his resignation as a non-executive Director with
effect from 31 October 2022 as he would like to spend more time
pursuing his own business. Following his resignation, he also ceased to
be a member of the audit committee of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the Nomination committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the ESG Committee, he
has also been appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 31 October 2022. He obtained a PHD of Economics from
University of California Davis in 1991. He was the managing director
and head of research department in China International Capital
Corporation Limited, and senior economist of Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) and consultant of World Bank. Currently, Mr. Xu serves as the
Honorary Professor in CEIBS and his research areas include
macroeconomics, finance, financial institutions and markets, transition
economics and China’s economic reforms. He is a famous Chinese
economist and was granted the highest award of economics study in
China, the “Sun Yefang Economic Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more
than 37 years’ experience in economics analysis.
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Aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
22 March 2019. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee. Mr. Chen is a tenured
Full Professor of Accounting at the School of Business and
Management at Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He
earned his Bachelor of Business Administration from National Cheng-
Chi University (Taiwan), Master of Science from University of lllinois at
Urbana Champaign, and P.H.D. in Accounting from University of
Texas. His research interests are corporate governance, auditing, and
earnings quality. His research has been published in top tier journals
including The Accounting Review, Journal of Accounting and
Economics, Journal of Financial Economics, Journal of Financial and
Quantitative Analysis, and Accounting Organizations and Society. Mr.
Chen’s article in Journal of Accounting and Economics (2007) (“JAE”)
is one of the most cited JAE articles in the year. His research has been
featured in CFO.com, Accounting Today, Thomson Reuters and
American Accounting Association’s monthly newsletter. Mr. Chen has
more than 14 years of experience of teaching financial and managerial
accounting to MBA and EMBA students and in Executive Education
programs. He has won numerous teaching awards including the
Franklin Teaching Prize, the Best 10 Lecturers, and Faculty of the Year
by EMBA students. Mr. Chen is also a CPA (Australia) and a Chartered
Global Management Accountant (CGMA).

Aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
27 May 2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the ESG Committee. Mr. Rui graduated from University
of International Relations (EIFXEIIZEFT) in the PRC in July 1990,
where he obtained a bachelor degree in international economics. He
also received a master of science in economics from Oklahoma State
University in the United States as well as a master of business
administration and a doctor of philosophy in business administration
from the University of Houston in the United States in May 1993,
December 1996 and August 1997 respectively. Mr. Rui has been a
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Professor of Finance and Accounting at CEIBS since January 2012,
and has held the title of Zhongkun Group Chair in Finance at CEIBS
from October 2015 to May 2019 and Parkland Chair in Finance at
CEIBS from May 2019. Mr. Rui has been professionally designated as
a Certified Financial Analyst by the Association for Investment
Management and Research since September 2000 and a Financial
Risk Manager by the Global Association of Risk Professionals since
April 2010.

He serves as an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the audit committee, and a member of each of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of Dexin Services Group Limited
(stock code: 2215; a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) since June 2021 and Shang Gong Group Co., Ltd. (ETH
B(EBE)KHD B AR (stock code: 600843; a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange), an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the audit committee of China Education Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 839; a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange) and he has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the nomination committee of Country Garden
Services Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6098; a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since May 2018.
Mr. Rui also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Sichuan Languang Justbon Services Group Co., Ltd. (a company
formerly listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and withdrew
its listing status on 19 August 2021) since 17 June 2021. Mr. Rui has
been an independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of COSCO Shipping Energy Transportation Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 1138 and stock code: 600026; a company listed on both
the main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange respectively) from June 2015 to June 2021 and an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Midea Group (EHISEE & B R A7) (stock code:
000333; a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from
September 2015 to September 2018 and an independent director and
the chairman of the audit committee of Shanghai Winner Information
Technology Co., Inc. (L/BEHEERIEIMH AR A R]) (stock code:
300609; a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from
December 2015 to September 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
o E A BN B Y

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng* (f#EHlE) (‘Mr. Zhou”), aged 47, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Management. He is primarily responsible
for the management of manpower and administration, customer
service and reverse review. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in April 2007 as
the deputy director of the president’s office. From May 2008 to
October 2020, Mr. Zhou held various positions such as the office
director, the compliance officer, the customer-service director, the
general project manager, the deputy general manager, the standing
deputy general manager and the general manager of regional
companies, mainly responsible for administration, customer
relationship, operation and management of various projects and
regional companies. Since October 2020, Mr. Zhou has been the vice
president of Landsea Green Management, responsible for the
management of manpower and administration, customer service and
reverse review. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in economics from
Anhui Finance and Trade College* (Z# 8 & £F5x) in 1997 and an
EMBA from CEIBS in September 2019.

Mr. Liu Chengwei* (I 1&), aged 45, is the vice president of
Landsea Green Management. Mr. Liu Chengwei is primarily responsible
for the overall operation and management of The Shanghai Real Estate
Company. Mr. Liu Chengwei joined the Group in February 2014 as the
deputy general manager of the regional company. From May 2017 to
February 2020, he served as the general manager of the regional
company. Since February 2020, Mr. Liu Chengwei has been the vice
president of Landsea Green Management and the general manager of
the Shanghai real estate company, responsible for its overall operation
and management. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in construction
engineering from Xi’an University of Technology in 1999, a master’s
degree in construction engineering from Tongji University in 2004 and
an EMBA from the National School of Development of Peking University
in 2021.
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Mr. Liu Shouwei (2I5F{&), aged 38, is the vice president of Landsea
Green Management. Mr. Liu Shouwei is primarily responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Hangzhou real estate
company. Mr. Liu Shouwei joined the Group in July 2007 as a deputy
manager of the finance department. From December 2014 to July
2019, Mr. Liu Shouwei held various positions such as the manager of
finance department, the assistant to general manager and the deputy
general manager of regional companies and the general manager and
the assistant to president of the financial management centre of the
regional company, mainly responsible for financial management. Since
July 2019, Mr. Liu Shouwei has served as the vice president. Since
January 2020, he has also assumed the position of general manager of
the Hangzhou real estate company, responsible for its overall operation
and management. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in accounting
from Southeast University in July 2007 and an MBA from Sichuan
University in September 2018. He is now studying an EMBA in Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business.

Mr. Mao Jiangjun (EIE) (“Mr. Mao”), aged 43, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Management. Mr. Mao is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Chengdu
real estate company. Mr. Mao joined the Group in April 2014 as the
general manager of The Chengdu Real Estate Company. Since
February 2020, Mr. Mao has served as the vice president and the
general manager of the Chengdu real estate company, responsible for
its overall operation and management. He obtained a master’s degree
in mechanical and electrical engineering from Zhejiang University in
March 2005 and an EMBA from CEIBS in April 2019. He is now
studying a doctorate in business administration in NEOMA Business
School.

Ms. Gu Jing (E1&) (‘Ms. Gu”), aged 42, is the vice president of
Landsea Green Management. Ms. Gu is fully responsible for the
financial management of Landsea Green Management. Ms. Gu joined
the Group in May 2014 as the treasurer. From August 2016 to
November 2020, Ms. Gu held various positions such as the assistant
to general manager, the deputy general manager and the general
manager, mainly responsible for finance, supply chain and post-
investment management. Since November 2020, Ms. Gu has been the
assistant to the president of Landsea Green Management, responsible
for the overall financial management of the Company. Since June
2022, Ms. Gu has been the vice president of Landsea Green
Management, responsible for the overall financial management of the
Company and Landsea Group. She obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in
accounting from Nanjing University of Finance and Economics in 2003.
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Mr. Xu Aibing* (R E ) (“Mr. Xu”), aged 43, is the vice president of
Landsea Green Management. Mr. Xu is primarily responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Nanjing real estate company.
Mr. Xu joined the Group in March 2018 as the deputy general manager
of the management centre for supply chain. From February 2019 to
February 2020, Mr. Xu served as its general manager. Since February
2020, Mr. Xu has been the assistant to president of Landsea Green
Management and the general manager of the management centre for
supply chain, responsible for operation. Since September 2021, Mr. Xu
has concurrently served as the general manager of the Nanjing real
estate company, responsible for its overall operation and management.
He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in civil engineering from Southeast
University in 2001.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan was appointed as Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company on 1 November 2006. Ms. Chan is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries)
and The Chartered Governance Institute. She is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan has over 26 years’
experience in handling listed company secretarial matters.

Ms. Chan has resigned as the Company Secretary of the Company
with effect from 30 December 2022, and ceased to act as the
Authorised Representative of the Company as required under Rule 3.05
of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, and the Authorised
Representative of the Company for accepting on the Company’s behalf
service of process or notice to be served on the Company in Hong
Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022

#REBEEXE(THREE]D 485 ROAFZEEEDN
AR RELTERERHEARNEZHEHKLE
EEER REEAR T N\F=ZANMALREH "
EEfEREEFOAAKLE R-F-NAF_A
ECTTFE A RELEREHEREEEDLE
K- _TFE_RAE RAELBRENSHE
BEBHBE  RIHEBEETLALE  2F
BETE- BT —FAAR HREEREER
WEARRKLE  BEERMEARNEZEKLEE
BER - RN _ZET-—FRREABIFLIATE

B8 -

REWE

MRELEIN -_ZERF+—-A-HAEZEREARAZ
REMERBRERR - REXLTR/RFERRIAERE
(AIREEBRWELS) REERAERENE
REL BRARBBEEEGLEE - RULHA
BB -+ RFRE LT ARMEESER -

REETER T —_F+-_A=THHEIARAH
NEME U BEEBA ETRRISE3.05 KR
ERARAREREK - ARRIEQEEDIZE 16 281K
RARBNBARRZETMAHAANR B R ENERRE
XX B AR R BRERR -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Gao was appointed as the board secretary, the Company
Secretary and the Authorised Representative of the Company on 30
December 2022.

Ms. Gao joined the Company in December 2020 and serves as an
investor relations officer. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Gao served
as the executive director of the board secretary office and the executive
director of investor relations in Fosun Tourism Group (stock code:
1992.hk) and the head of capital market in Haier Electronics Group
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1169.hk).

Ms. Gao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in management from the
Central University of Finance and Economics in 2005 and a master’s
degree in business administration from Peking University in 2016. She
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
She is also a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance
Professional, a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and a
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) Charterholder.

Ms. Gao has over 15 years’ experience in investor relations and
corporate governance of listed companies. The Company meets the
requirements under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP

The Group upheld the development strategy of “Product-differentiation,
Asset-light transformation and Revenue-diversification” and leveraged
its resource endowments to further achieve capability of green property
products differentiation. Meanwhile, with the advantages of products
diversification, the Group actively expanded various projects focusing
on minority interests and Project Management Services to achieve
revenue diversification.

In FY2022, “Landsea Products” recorded contracted sales of
approximately RMB22.32 billion (2021: approximately RMB47.15
billion). The contracted area was 1,162,178 sq.m. (2021: 2,635,383
sg.m.).

In FY2022, the Group secured 57 projects in total, of which 24 were in
the PRC and 33 were in the United States. All of the projects were
under development for sale (including 35 projects in which the Group
held equity interests and 22 Project Management Services projects).

In FY2022, the Group recorded an increase in the new project saleable
area of 3,378,646 sqg.m., which were properties under development for
sale, with expected new project saleable value of approximately
RMB55.54 billion, in which new project saleable area of 1,082,305
sg.m. and expected new project saleable value of approximately
RMB14.63 billion are recorded from the new project the Group held
interest respectively. Among the equity-held projects, the equity
attributable to the Group recorded a new project saleable area of
995,024 sg.m. as well as expected new project saleable value of
approximately RMB12.17 billion. During the period under review, the
Group obtained new Project Management Services projects with a
GFA of 3,073,509 sq.m. (saleable area of 2,296,341 sq.m.) and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB40.92 billion. By
adhering to a stable and prudent investment strategy, the Group’s
costs for acquiring land and asset have significant advantage in
resisting the market risk in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBEE B Mo A

In FY2022, the Group had reserve projects with an aggregate saleable
area of 7,271,108 sg.m. and expected saleable value of approximately
RMB131.19 billion, in which saleable area of 2,565,782 sg.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB48.31 billion secured for
the equity-held projects, with saleable area of 2,267,383 sg.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB39.59 billion attributable
to the Group. The Group had also acquired a total of 68 Project
Management Services projects, with saleable area of 4,705,321 sg.m.
and expected saleable value of approximately RMB82.88 billion. The
Group held the leased properties with total GFA of 96,392 sq.m. and
the equity-held projects with GFA of 51,509 sg.m..

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC

For expansion of real estate development in the PRC, Landsea
continued to take a prudent and pragmatic approach. As the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group secured a total of 24 projects in
cities such as Nanjing, Suzhou, Chengdu, Wuxi, Xi’an, Zhongshan with
an additional saleable area of 2,390,000 sg.m. and saleable value of
approximately RMB43.65 billion. Meanwhile, the new Project
Management Services contracts amounted to approximately RMB1.19
billion (2021: approximately RMB981 million), representing an increase
of approximately 21.2% in year 2021.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE UNITED STATES
The Group’s property development business covers both the PRC and
the United States. Landsea Homes has successively entered Greater
New York, California and Arizona, Texas and Florida. In FY2022,
Landsea Homes secured 33 new projects in Florida with additional
saleable area of approximately 990,000 sg.m. and saleable value of
approximately RMB11.89 billion.

CONTRACTED SALES IN WHICH THE GROUP HELD
EQUITY INTERESTS AND PROPERTIES SOLD BUT
NOT RECOGNISED

In FY2022, the total contracted sales of the property projects in which
the Group held equity interests amounted to approximately RMB9.08
billion with contracted sales area of 495,714 sq.m., i.e. an average
selling price of RMB18,315 per sg.m.. The contracted sales were
mainly from the on-sale projects in Hangzhou, Wuhan, Wuxi, Jiaxing,
Chengdu, Mianyang, Chongaing, Nanjing, Shanghai, etc. in the PRC
and first tier and second tier gateway cities in the United States. As at
31 December 2022, the Group’s accumulated areas of properties sold
but not recognised were 1,583,075 sg.m. (as at 31 December 2021:
2,497,779 sg.m.), amounting to approximately RMB24.37 billion (as at
31 December 2021: approximately RMB40.86 billion), in which areas
of properties sold but not recognised attributable to the Group were
672,557 sq.m. (as at 31 December 2021: 1,132,397 sg.m.), amounting
to approximately RMB10.40 billion (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately RMB18.67 billion).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B 3 W S o A

EXTERNAL CONTRACTS IN 2022

—ECCFHIMNEN

Average
Contracted Contracted
Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Equity Holding Amounts Sales GFA Price
BEHEE EREHE
R 1HA BEEH ARHEELE EEEE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®EFT) (F7K) (AR¥TT)
1 Landsea Future Block 100% 10,400.00 =
AR E
2 Nanjing Youth Block 100% 30 =
MREEER
3 Nanjing Xihua Mansion 19% 7,030 =
R ERE T
4 Nanjing Zixi Mansion 20% 18,511 1,150 16,097
MR BRI
5 Sugian Weilan Court 51% 90 -
BB R R
6 Hefei Landsea’s Hi-tech Court 49% 1,244 -
S RERA T = 3T B
7 Yixin Xindu Mansion 26% 2,758 =
HEFEAT
8 Suzhou Cheng Garden 100% 1,000 -
ERM B E
9 Wuxi Xihua Mansion 40% 110,769 2,322 47,704
P BRI AT
10 Zhangjiagang Le Mansion 50% 4,157 202 20,579
SRR B LENT
11 Hangzhou Xihua Mansion 49% 400 -
M EREE AT
12 Hangzhou Le Mansion 50% 676 —
A E S/
18 Hangzhou Linglongyue 30% 668,823 30,427 21,981
TN S BEHE
14 Haining Oasis Jing Yuan 20% 396,379 28,409 13,953
BN
15 Wuhan Xihua Mansion 30% 675,852 31,682 21,332

EURBREST
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Average
Contracted Contracted
Sales Contracted Sales Selling

Number Projects Equity Holding Amounts Sales GFA Price
BEHE EREHE
=277 1HA BEEH ARHEELE EEEE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®EFT) (F7K) (AR¥TT)
16 Chengdu Xihua Mansion 33% 725 -
P ERER 2E T
17 Chongaing Le Mansion 30% 80,013 6,404 12,494
BRI
18 Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue 50% 11,292 1,207 9,355
BB RA R 254
19 Chengdu Future Zhe 50% 134,593 23,461 5,737
PER A R
20 Chengdu Le Mansion 76% 1,943 -
B ERSE T
21 Chengdu Xihua Tianxi 60% 1,673 98 17,071
P EREREE R EE
22 Mianyang Jiangyu Bay 60% 254,880 26,406 9,652
415 T U
23 Tianjin Emerald Lan Wan 75% 1,236 -
KRR E
24 Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion (B) 100% 300 —
RAERBRHE B)
25 Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion (CD) 35% 1,359 =
REZEE (CD)
26 Xi’an Future Block 100% 3,895 -
P AR R
27 14th & 6th 95% 406,951 2,439 166,852
28 Ardmore 100% 259,268 18,733 13,840
29 Avora 51% 20,452 358 57,938
30 Bargrove 100% 218,551 16,999 12,857
& Belle Oaks 100% 35,441 1,689 20,983
32 Celery Oaks 100% 138,079 9,485 14,558
& Centerra 100% 55,963 3,327 16,821
34 Country Club Lakes Estates 100% 32,417 2,063 15,714
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PILRE R w  o0 AT

Average
Contracted Contracted
Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Equity Holding Amounts Sales GFA Price
BEHEE EREHE
R 1HA BEE ARHEELE EEEE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®ETFT) (F7K) (AR®TT)
89 Courtyards at Waterstone 100% 79,953 6,018 13,286
36 Cypress Hammock 100% 206,781 13,954 14,819
37 Cypress Oaks 100% 11,510 897 12,832
38 Davenport Estates 100% 78,646 8,758 13,666
39 Eastmark 100% 126,355 6,431 19,648
40 Ellis Town Country 100% 675,769 283,383 28,900
41 Estrella 100% 120,372 7,041 17,096
42 Georgiana Reserve 100% 15,319 684 22,396
43 Greenfield 100% 170,112 12,808 13,282
44 Halifax Plantation-Bulow 100% 78,229 4,683 16,705
45 Hammock Reserve 100% 32,451 2,463 13,175
46 Hanover Lakes 100% 218,447 14,480 15,086
47 Harvest Queen Creek 100% 4,027 257 15,669
48 Heathrow Country Estate Homes 100% 27,789 1,439 19,311
49 Horse Creek 100% 94,574 7,272 13,005
50 Iron Ridge 100% 94,768 2,114 44,829
51 Lake Lincoln 100% 96,578 7,180 13,451
52 Lavender 100% 338,407 4,215 80,286
58 Legacy Landings 100% 61,051 4,778 12,778
54 Lincoln 65 - Nolin 100% 165,895 5,081 32,650
58 North Central Phoenix 100% 74,333 4,821 15,419
(Madison Town & Country)
56 North Copper Canyon 100% 98,989 7,015 14,111
57 Northern Farms 100% 128,745 7,845 16,411
58 Novato 100% 113,952 3,413 33,388
59 Ontario Vander Eyk 100% 433,648 15,450 28,068
60 Orchid Terrace 100% 9,892 767 12,897
61 Placentia Heights 100% 102,964 2,947 34,939
62 Preservation Pointe 100% 116,340 9,178 12,676
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B 3G W e o A

Average
Contracted Contracted
Sales Contracted Sales Selling

Number Projects Equity Holding Amounts Sales GFA Price
BEHE EREHE

=277 1HA BEEH ARHEELE EEEE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)

(AR®EFT) (F7K) (AR¥TT)

63 Preserve at Sunrise 100% 147,578 10,790 18,677
64 Ridgeview 100% 323,335 23,831 13,568
65 Sky Lake 100% 18,844 1,295 14,551
66 South Carpenter Estates 100% 3,041 199 15,281
67 St. Johns Preserve 100% 66,636 4,879 13,658
68 Stone Creek Ranch 100% 10,136 385 26,327
69 Sunrise Ranch 100% 152,732 9,821 15,552
70 Sunrise Ridge 100% 4,949 346 14,303
71 Sunset Farms 100% 72,201 4,729 15,268
72 Synagogue 90% 62,525 528 118,419
73 Tevelde 100% 314,190 13,086 24,010
74 Tirado 100% 97,534 2,296 42,480
75 Trinity Lakes 100% 141,853 10,245 13,846
76 Verrado 100% 140,389 12,785 10,981
77 Vintage Oaks 100% 97,5684 4,608 21,177
78 Williams Preserve 100% 3,746 317 11,817
79 Wiregrass 100% 83,988 6,105 13,757
80 Woods of Lake Helen 100% 4,563 244 18,701
Equity-held projects entered into by 9,078,870 495,714 18,315

the Company
ARSI RL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

G

PROJECT RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had project reserves with total
saleable area of 7,271,103 sg.m. and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB131.19 billion. In terms of the equity holding,
saleable area attributable to the Group was 2,267,383 sg.m. and
expected saleable value was approximately RMB39.59 billion. The
Group had also acquired a total of 68 Project Management Services
projects, with saleable area of 4,705,321 sg.m. and expected saleable
value of approximately RMB82.88 billion.

ACCUMULATED LAND RESERVE AT THE END OF 2022

Total  Developed  Developing

Number ~ City GFA GFA GFA
BAT BRA

R i BREER NEER NEER
(sam) (sqm.) (sam)

(B5K) K M)

HE f#E

RZZBZZF+ZA=+—0  AEEEFNHFE
TERAETEHEEAT,271,103F 5 X » Fasta & &E
HNABAREA311.9ET ; EERLLOIFTE  ~&EE
FE(GTA B SR EMTE 52,267,383 F 77K » TE&THA
EEENABARKES5G.9EBIL  AEEZABRE
RR#5IE B 681 - Al E®EIE &4,705,321 F 5K -
EETAIEEENAARE 828818 T

—EB-KREFL@
GFA for
future Saleable Saleable
development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
ARER
NEER BEEE BEER gL TEER
(sq.m.) (RMB'000) (sqm.) (RMB'000) (sqm.)

(FA)  (ARMTT) (Fh%) (ARETT) (k)

1 Shanghai 252,666 252,666 =
b

2 Nanjing 2,329,477 1,657,682 643,377

3 Hangzhou 381,194 219,754 161,440
i

4 Chengdu 3,342,646 2,775,444 522,183
e

5 Tianjin 495,926 299,184 178,809
%2

6 Xi'an 129,449 = 97,119
B

7 Chongaing 680,927 235,844 285,079
L

8 Wuhan 220,143 = 220,143
7

9 Hefei 335,758 278,360 57,398
A

10 Changsha 266,216 80,301 112,098

11 Shijazhuang 166,336 = 166,336
e
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= 3,811,249 167,993 89,542 =

28518 37,272,989 1,359450 10,752,992 213,275

7,840,831 181,255 1,445,296 54,441

45,0

9 26422828 1,774,637 7,162,631 697,756

17,933 3,176,407 220,628 2,882,478 136,859

32,330 1,066,069 61,314 819,647 24,530
160,004 5,151,206 392,732 2,172,472 66,406
= 2221128 95,231 1,504,008 58,809

= 3,347,173 201,875 492,810 34,710
13817 1,085,522 162,644 3,480 =

= 1,079,183 124,875 121,200 =



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RIS
GFA for
Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  City GFA GFA GFA  development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
B&I BRH ARER
Fi i BREEE NEER NEER NEER BERE BEER TE&E TEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sqm.) (RMB'000) (sqm.) (RMB'000) (sq.m.)

(FAk) (F7k) (F75%) (%) (ARMTT) (k) (ARETT) (F7ok)

12 Suzhou 2,003,787 684,798 862,754 456,185 15,915,667 694,667 14,517,018 614,916
i

13 Wuxi 1,767,696 694,828 612,671 450,197 11,845,239 609,444 17,246,530 588,031
&

14 Changzhou 391,851 140,833 261,018 = 4,874,556 185,970 3,295,550 96,787
i

15 Nantong 1,056,254 169,325 165,089 721,840 4,122,504 302,968 7,522,530 494,757
B8

16 Jinhua 576,344 = 576,344 = 2,155,746 180,916 2,123,554 190,179
8%

17 Ningbo 216,549 = 216,049 = 461,043 36,072 1,742,121 129,126

18 Jiaxing 314,288 73,291 240,997 = 2,187,580 160,615 1,339,665 64,006

19 Taizhou 40,624 = 40,624 = 620,906 23,799 101,024 4,116
i

20 Ta'an 203,757 = 136,112 67,645 = = 2,519,310 109,805
5%

21 Zhongshan 843,312 78,046 204,528 540,738 1,679,371 160,312 8,005,465 449,222
il

22 Huizhou 139,615 = 139,615 = = = 1,577,480 94,754
i

28 Kaifeng 218,468 = 278,468 = 913912 101,488 1,304,674 110,724
R

24 Huaian 206,653 = 206,653 = 64,344 7423 1,123,194 163,775
%

25 Xianyang 443,619 = 302,259 141,360 2,035,386 192,203 1,715,366 155,030

26 Zhangzhou 103,075 = 108,075 = = = 1,074,830 56,772
=

2 Yancheng 450,924 103,131 78,136 269,657 1,983,282 157,872 2,819,049 245,350
By

28 Chuzhou 157,138 = 106,138 52,000 127,694 22,155 603,986 81,629
B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
RIS
GFA for
Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  City GFA GFA GFA  development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
BT BRH ARER
ok i BREEE NEER NEER NEER BERE BEER TE&E TEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sqm.) (RMB'000) (sqm.) (RMB'000) (sq.m.)
(FAx) (FhA) (FhK) (Frx)  (ARETR) (Frx)  (AREF7) (TR
29 Zhangjiakou 134,908 - 134,908 - 613,669 87,420 397,787 12,597
FXRH
30 Mianyang 115,409 - 115,409 - 917,649 84,057 55,440 -
31 Sugian 425,143 201,389 223,754 - 3,071,741 299,590 90,968 -
EE
32 Yingtan 92,060 - - 92,060 - - 751,560 58,839
33 Huangshi 215418 - - 215,418 - - 1,173,220 173,922
Eh
34 Ganzi 111,000 - - 111,000 - - 781,816 85,427
R
35 the United States 2,924,608 892,537 255,138 1776938 12,508,173 969,555 381,259,723 1,985,053
X8l
Total: 21,803,188 8,837,313 7,713,221 5,252,654 158,525,182 9,019,660 131,189,112 7,271,103
ait:
Of Which: Subtotal of Equity-held Project 9,746,431 5,266,625 2,381,253 2,098,553 82,643,291 5206477 48,312,050 2,565,782
B BHERER
Subtotal of Project Management 12,056,757 3,570,688 5,331,968 3,154,101 75,881,891 3813183 82,877,062 4,705,321
Services projects
ZRERRERER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue was
mainly derived from Project Management Services of approximately
RMB353 million (2021: approximately RMB752 million), from sale of
properties of approximately RMB13.66 billion (2021: approximately
RMB7.32 billion) and rental income of approximately RMB5 million
(2021: approximately RMB4 million), which in aggregate was
approximately RMB14.02 billion (2021: approximately RMB8.08 billion).
The gross profit of the Group was approximately RMB1.35 billion
(2021: approximately RMB1.67 billion) and the gross profit margin was
approximately 9.7% (2021: approximately 20.7%).

RECOGNISED SALES OF PROPERTIES OF
SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised revenue
of approximately RMB14.02 billion (2021: approximately RMB8.08
billion). In which, the consolidated subsidiaries of the Group recognised
revenue from sales of properties and total sales area of approximately
RMB13.66 billion (2021: approximately RMB7.32 billion) and 686,758
sg.m. respectively, mainly attributable to Chengdu Xihua Tianxi and
Xi’an Future Block in the PRC, and Ellis Town Country, 14th & 6th,
Tevelde, Ontario Vander Eyk, Verrado, Ardmore, etc. in the United
States. The average selling price in the PRC was approximately
RMB20,695 (2021: approximately RMB23,503) per sg.m., while the
average selling price in the United States was approximately
RMB18,746 (2021: approximately RMB17,699) per sg.m..

INCOME FROM PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
The Group recorded Project Management Services income of
approximately RMB353 million (2021: approximately RMB752 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

INCOME FROM RENTAL AND MANAGEMENT FEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised rental
and management fee income of approximately RMB5 million (2021:
approximately RMB4 million).

B PELRE R ww b o3 AT

Bt 7% Bl R
WA RER
BHE-_ZTZ-_—F+_A=+—RLFE A£@EZ
EEBAZERERABRERBBVALNBARE
353BIL(ZZ=—F : HARARKET52(ET) - ¥
EHEWALDBAREIB6ET(ZE-—%F 4
RARET32MET) - LEHESKRALDR/ARKE0.05
BL(ZEZ—F : HARARK0.048T) * BFFH
HNEARBAW02EBET(ZEZ—F : HAARK
80.8187L) - AEEEMANABARKISSEIL(ZE
fi HNEARKE16.7EIT)  EFELNAFLTY%
ZEZ—F  B20.7%) °

MEARCERAYREE

HE_TZ-_—F+-_A=+—BILFE A£EHE
ERBRANBARKE1402BTL(ZE=_—F : 895
AR¥B081ET) - Hh » AEEAHBEANMEB LR
AR EHERARBHERED AN ASARKE
1366FBT(ZE_—F: HRARKTI2ET) R
686,758 F 770K - T BRI B iR AR EBERE
RE R R ARREGEME M E B Els Town
Country » 14th & 6th * Tevelde * Ontario Vander
Eyk * Verrado * Ardmore &8 B - £ fR B3 [& F 15
HEBBRARBTEARARK20605BT(ZE=—
F:HARANRE235037T)  EEMEFHHER
BHAESEFRKARKEA8T46TL(ZTEZ—F : 4
RHANREE17,6997T)

FENRERBERA
HE-ZE-_—_F+-A=1+—HLFE A5£EZ
FERERBUANAEAREISBETL(ZZE=_—
F:HBARETB21ETT) °

HEREEBERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SELLING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded selling
expenses of approximately RMB695 million (2021: approximately
RMB486 million). The increase in selling expenses was attributable to
the strengthened stimulating policies to promote sales under the
impact of pandemic and market.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
administrative expenses of approximately RMB893 million (2021:
approximately RMB1.28 billion). The decrease in administrative
expenses was mainly due to the increase in listing expenses indirectly
incurred by the acquisition of a special purpose acquisition company
(“SPAC”) in the United States (approximately RMB377 million) in 2021.

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net provision for impairment
loss on financial assets of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB479 million (2021: approximately RMB275 million). The
Company’s net provision for impairment loss on financial assets was
provided using the expected credit loss rate for financial assets such
as trade and other receivables in accordance with the standard
requirement of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

FAIR VALUE LOSSES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fair value losses of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB60 million (2021: losses of
approximately RMB6 million). The fair value losses were mainly due to
the combined effect of: (i) the losses on changes in fair value of
warrants brought by the acquisition of SPAC in the United States
during the period of approximately RMB26 million; and (i) the fair value
losses on investment properties during the period of approximately
RMB34 million (2021: losses of approximately RMB20 million). The
Group’s investment properties included Huangxing Building in
Shanghai, 2/F, Building 5, Shanghai IBP International Business Park,
Huafei Apartment in Nanjing, Wangjiawan Building in Nanjing and
Neighbourhood Union in Wuxi located in the PRC. The fair value of the
investment properties was assessed by a qualified independent valuer
based on the property’s current business model adopted by the Group
and its expected income to be generated.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCE COST

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded interest
expenditures of approximately RMB720 million (2021: approximately
RMB629 million). The capitalisation rate of interest expenses in the
2022 was approximately 45.7% (2021: approximately 59.6%). For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the expensed finance cost of the
Group was approximately RMB391 million (2021: approximately
RMB254 million). For the year ended 31 December 2022, the interest
income of the Group was approximately RMB22 million (including
interest income from amounts due from joint ventures and associates,
non-controlling interests and loan to third parties) and the net finance
cost was approximately RMB369 million (2021: approximately RMB164
million). For the year ended 31 December 2022, the weighted average
finance cost was approximately 6.2% (2021: approximately 7.0%).

SHARE OF NET LOSS OF JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s share of net
losses of joint ventures and associates amounted to approximately
RMB272 million (2021: share of net profit of joint ventures and
associates amounted to approximately RMB99 million), mainly due to
an increase in our share of net losses of joint ventures as a result of the
expected project impairment of joint venture.

TAXATION

Income tax expenses include enterprise income tax and land
appreciation tax. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded taxation charge of approximately RMB707 million (2021:
approximately RMB189 million), mainly due to the downturn in the
overall domestic real estate market in the past two years, the write off
of approximately RMB373 million of deferred income tax assets led to
an increase in income tax expenses for the current period.
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LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred a net loss
of approximately RMB2.45 billion (2021: net loss of approximately
RMB696 million). It is mainly due to the provision for impairment and
the write off of deferred income tax assets due to the continued impact
of the COVID-19 epidemic and the overall market downturn in the real
estate industry.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash positions

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash amounted to approximately RMB1.32 billion (as at 31
December 2021: approximately RMB4.22 billion). As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was approximately 1.4 times (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately 1.3 times).

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2022, the total indebtedness of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB7.33 billion (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately RMB8.49 billion). The indebtedness of the Group
primarily consists of shareholder loans, bank borrowings, senior notes
and EB-5 financing. As at 31 December 2022, total net debts* were
approximately RMB6.08 billion (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately RMB4.46 billion). As at 31 December 2022, the
proportion of short-term debts was approximately 20.4% (as at 31
December 2021: approximately 45.2%) and long-term debts was
approximately 79.6% (as at 31 December 2021: approximately 54.8%).
Long-term debt of the Company accounted for a greater proportion,
maintaining reasonable structure of long-term and short-term debt to
facilitate sufficient liquidity.

& net debts = total debts less cash and cash equivalents (excluding restricted cash)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GEARING RATIO

The Group has been striving to optimize its capital and debt structure.
The Group’s debt to total assets ratio (total borrowings divided by total
assets) was approximately 36.7% as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31
December 2021: approximately 30.4%). In addition, the debt to assets
ratio of the Group net of advance payment received was approximately
86.4% as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately 76.6%). The management will monitor the capital and
debt structure of the Group on a regular basis with aim of mitigating its
exposure to the risk of gearing.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of the Group were secured
by one or a combination of the following items: restricted cash,
property, plant and equipment, properties under development,
investment properties, property held for sales, leasehold land of
delivered properties, equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the
Group and guarantee provided by the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Senior notes were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the
Company. EB-5 loans are guaranteed by a subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, there were no charges on the group asset.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND CURRENCY RISK

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar. The functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the United States is United States dollar while that of the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar, and that of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China is Renminbi. As at 31 December 2022,
the corresponding exchange rate changes in the internal funds transfer
of the Group resulted in book exchange gains recorded by the Group
of approximately RMB189 million (2021: exchange losses of
approximately RMB120 million). As at 31 December 2022, the assets
of the Group denominated in US$ was approximately 1.5 times of the
liabilities denominated in US$ (2021: approximately 1.3 times). As
foreign currency assets are in line with the foreign currency liabilities,
no financial instrument is required for hedging purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2022, the debts payable borne with fixed interest
rate accounted for approximately 35.9% (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately 51.8%) of the total debts of the Group. The Group will
continue to monitor the trend of interest rates in the market closely and
seek to adopt appropriate risk management measures for mitigating
the exposure to the interest rate risk. In this regard, the Group
considered the exposure to interest rate risk is low.

GUARANTEE

The Group cooperates with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgage loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and
provides guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligations of
repayment. As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB994 million (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately RMB1.25 billion). In addition, the Group provided
guarantee for the loan of Guangzhou Langxiu Business Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (EMBABFEEEFHHRABR A F), and the
balance of the guarantee as at 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB102 million (as at 31 December 2021: approximately RMB118
million). As at 31 December 2022, there were certain corporate
guarantees provided by the subsidiaries of the Group for each other in
respect of their borrowings. The management considered that the
subsidiaries had sufficient financial resources to fulfill their obligations.
Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL BEARE BEAKWBERHESEE
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During FY2022, the Group had the following significant investments, R-ZT - —BIREE  NEBEETEO NEAK
material acquisitions and disposals: Z EBAKERHESHE :

THE ACQUISITION OF 100% INTEREST IN
HANOVER FAMILY BUILDERS, LLC

On 18 January 2022 (United States Pacific Standard Time),
Landsea Homes of Florida LLC (“Landsea Homes Florida”) and
Landsea Homes Corporations, which are non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into the membership
interest agreement with (among others) SAM Building Partners,
LLC and Edge Creek Ventures, LLC as sellers (the “US Sellers”),
pursuant to which Landsea Homes Florida agreed to purchase,
and the US Sellers agreed to sell, all the issued equity interests of
Hanover Family Builders, LLC (“Hanover Family”), a limited
liability company incorporated in the State of Florida of the USA
whose operations primarily consist of land acquisition and
development, construction, and the sale of single family
residential units in Central Florida and Orlando market. The
acquisition enables the Company to strategically expand its
brand into in Central Florida and Orlando markets, and
strengthen its market share in competitively priced homes in the
USA. The base purchase price of the transaction was
US$179,241,431.

The acquisition of the Subject Company constituted a major
transaction of the Company under Rule 14.06 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and was completed on 19 January 2022, upon
which Hanover Family has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. For further information, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 19 January 2022 and the
circular of the Company dated 30 November 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the total asset of Hanover Family
accounted for approximately 9.61% of the total asset of the
Group, and Hanover Family contributed about US$30.2 million
pretax profit (unaudited) to the Group for FY2022.
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THE CREDIT AGREEMENT

On 12 May 2022 (United States Eastern Standard Time),
Landsea Holdings Corporation, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as the borrower (the “Borrower”),
and 1103849 B.C. LTD as the lender (the “Lender”) entered into
the credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), pursuant to
which, the Lender conditionally agreed to provide the loan in a
principal amount of US$45,000,000 (the “Loan”) to the Borrower.
If the Facility Termination Date (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) shall have been extended as provided in the Credit
Agreement, and the Lender shall have provided the requisite
written notice to the Borrower, of the Lender’s election to
exercise the Lender Stock Payment Election Right (as defined in
the Credit Agreement), the Borrower shall repay the outstanding
principal of the Loan with common shares of Landsea Homes
(the “LSEA Stock”) in lieu of immediately available funds on the
extended Facility Termination Date, together with accrued
interest on such principal, which shall be paid in cash. The
number of shares of LSEA Stock required to repay the
outstanding principal of the Loan shall be determined by dividing
the outstanding principal of the Loan by US$9.30, provided that
transfer of such number of LSEA Stock would not cause the
Borrower’s beneficial ownership in LSEA Stock to drop below
50% of the issued and outstanding shares of LSEA Stock.

In the event that the Loan (a) is not repaid on the Facility
Termination Date or (b) the Loan shall have been accelerated
following the occurrence of an event of default, the Lender may
elect by providing written notice to the Borrower to require all or
any portion specified by the Lender of the outstanding principal
of the Loan be immediately repayable with LSEA Stock, together
with the balance of the remaining outstanding principal and all
accrued interest be payable in cash. The number of shares of
LSEA Stock required to so repay the outstanding principal of the
Loan shall be determined by dividing the outstanding principal
amount of the Loan by US$6.00 but in any case shall not exceed
4,838,710 shares of LSEA Stock.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The exercise of the Lender Stock Payment Election Right by the
Lender for the LSEA Stock is at the discretion of the Lender, and
was therefore treated as if it had been exercised pursuant to Rule
14.74 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, 4,838,710 shares of LSEA
Stock was treated as if they had been disposed of by the
Borrower.

The Credit Agreement constituted a major transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For further
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 May 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 8
August 2022.

THE DISPOSAL £ HRIREEEFR 2 F (NANJING
XINBEISHENG INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT
LIMITED*)

On 17 May 2022, F R BAs b2 & B B R 2 & (Nanjing Langming
Properties Group Limited*), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as the vendor (the “Vendor’), and f R & £ /5
B H AR AF (Nanjing Jiufu Xinghai Real Estate Co., Ltd.*) as
the purchaser (the “Purchaser”) entered into the equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser agreed to purchase, the entire equity interest in &5
SZHRIREEE AR AR (Nanjing Xinbeisheng Investment
Management Limited*), a company established under the laws of
the PRC with limited liability and is principally engaged in
enterprise management consulting and property management,
for the consideration of RMB85,500,000. As at the date of this
report, the equity transfer has not been completed.

The disposal constituted a disclosable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For further
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 17 May 2022.
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THE ACQUISITIONS OF THE REMAINING 45%
EQUITY INTEREST IN & MBI B 2GR A 7
(SUZHOU LANGKUN PROPERTIES COMPANY
LIMITED*)

On 31 May 2022, L/8RAGRE%EEHF R AR (Shanghai Langyu
Commercial Management Limited*), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as the purchaser (the “Purchaser”),
TLEREZRE SR E AR AT (Jiangsu Guotai Huading Investment
Company Limited*) as vendor, and %/l BA3RE 2GR A 7
(Suzhou Langkun Properties Company Limited*) (the “Target
Company”), a company established under the laws of the PRC
with limited liability and is principally engaged in property
development, entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant
to which, the Purchaser agreed to purchase, and the Vendor
agreed to sell, 22.5% of the entire equity interest in the Target
Company, for a consideration of RMB41,377,657.50.

The Purchaser also succeeded in the bidding for 22.5% equity
interest in the Target Company through Shanghai United Assets
and Equity Exchange. On 31 May 2022, the Purchaser and jT #x
BlREESBHEERAR A A (Jiangsu Guotai Zijin Technology
Development Company Limited*) (“Jiangsu Zijin”) as vendor
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which, the
Purchaser agreed to purchase, and Jiangsu Zijin agreed to sell
22.5% of the entire equity interest in the Target Company, for a
consideration of RMB41,377,657.50. The Company considers
the acquisition represents the Company’s acquisition of full
control over the Target Company, which will enable the Company
to make more effective use of the surplus cash in the Target
Company.

Upon completion of the acquisitions on 8 June 2022, the Target
Company became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The acquisitions constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For further
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 31 May 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE DISPOSAL OF 10.7% INTEREST IN LANDSEA
HOMES

On 31 May 2022 (United States Eastern Daylight Time), Landsea
Holdings Corporation, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the vendor (the “Vendor”), and Green Investment
Alpha Limited, as the purchaser (the “Purchaser”) entered into
the stock purchase agreement (the “Stock Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Vendor agreed to sell, and
the Purchaser agreed to purchase, approximately 10.7% of the
issued and outstanding shares of the common shares of Landsea
Homes (the “Sale Shares”) at a sale price of US$9.30 per share
for a total consideration of US$45,000,000. Upon completion of
the disposal on 31 May 2022, Landsea Homes remains to be a
subsidiary of the Company.

In connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement, on 31 May
2022 (United States Eastern Daylight Time), the Purchaser and
the Vendor entered into the put option agreement (the “Put
Option Agreement”), pursuant to which the Purchaser shall, for
each of the First Put Exercise Period and the Second Put
Exercise Period (each as defined in the Put Option Agreement),
have the right, but not the obligation, to cause the Vendor to
purchase all or a portion of the Sale Shares.

Each of the disposal under the Stock Purchase Agreement and
the put right under the Put Option Agreement constituted a major
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. For further information, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 31 May 2022 and the circular of the
Company dated 8 August 2022.
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SHARE REPURCHASE BY LANDSEA HOMES (THE
“SHARE REPURCHASE”)

On 1 June 2022 (United States Eastern Daylight Time), Landsea
Holdings Corporation (“LHC”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Landsea Homes entered into the
share repurchase agreement, pursuant to which LHC agreed to
sell, and Landsea Homes agreed to repurchase shares (the
“Repurchase Shares”), representing approximately 9.7% of the
issued and outstanding shares of the common shares of Landsea
Homes at a repurchase price of US$6.82 per share for a total
consideration of approximately US$30 million. The shareholding
of LHC in Landsea Homes decreased from approximately 61.9%
to approximately 57.8% immediately after completion of the
Share Repurchase and cancellation of the Repurchase Shares.

The Share Repurchase constituted a disclosable transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For further
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 2 June 2022.

THE DISPOSAL OF 50% EQUITY INTEREST IN A
JOINT VENTURE

On 25 August 2022, LR PEERGR A (Shanghai
Langkun Business Management Co., Ltd.), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company as the vendor (the “Vendor”),
entered into the sale and purchase agreement with (among
others) It RFIEZEIREEEFR L(BRE ) (Beiing Ronghui
Jiazhi Investment Management Center (Limited Partnership)*) and
EFZRREEIEZAER AR (Xiamen Jiasheng Rongmao
Management Consulting Co. Ltd.*) (collective, the “Purchasers”),
pursuant to which the Purchasers conditionally agreed to
purchase and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell 50% of the
entire equity interest in /8RR EEE AR AR (Shanghai
Rongmao Commercial Management Co., Ltd.*), with an
aggregate initial consideration of RMB137,575,942.05. Upon
completion of the disposal on 25 August 2022, the Company
ceased to have any interest in the joint venture.

The disposal constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For further
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 25 August 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

8 THE DISPOSAL OF 100% INTEREST IN L/SEIAE

¥ 5P 2 7 (SHANGHAI LANGSONG ENTERPRISES
COMPANY LIMITED¥)
On 24 October 2022, E/8RA%E T ER A AR A F] (Shanghai
Langxu Enterprise Management Consultancy Company), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as the vendor
(the “Vendor”), F REASEHIES B AR A (Nanjing Langming
Property Group Limited) and G FREESIEHFR AT
(Shanghai Langging Investment Management Limited), indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company as the vendor
guarantors (the “Vendor Guarantors”) and LAO VI CN Company
VI Pte. Ltd. as the purchaser (the “Purchaser”) entered into the
equity acquisition agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to purchase, 100%
equity interest in _E/EERIAE ZEBBR A F] (Shanghai Langsong
Enterprises Company Limited*) at the initial consideration of
RMB102,489,655.35, subject to adjustments. Upon completion
of the disposal on 24 October 2022, the target company ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Company.

The disposal constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For further
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 24 October 2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any specific plan for
material investments or capital assets.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save for default of the Defaulted Senior Note as mentioned in note
2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statement, there is no other material
subsequent event undertaken by the Company or the Group after 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report

ot = Rl=F &=

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to Shareholders
and quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to
Shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns to Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted and has complied with the code provisions
set out in part 2 of the CG Code as its own code of corporate
governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance with all
the relevant code provisions under part 2 of the CG Code during
FY2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions were performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors, and
to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has
reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all

Directors, all Directors have complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for FY2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the period from 1 January 2022 to 30 December 2022, the
Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1”), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services to
the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit difference commercial needs; Ms.
Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan”) the representative of Uni-1, was
the named Company Secretary of the Company.

The biographical details of Ms. Chan are set out under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
Ms. Chan has resigned as the Company Secretary of the Company
with effect from 30 December 2022, and ceased to act as the
Authorised Representative of the Company.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms.
Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant continuous
professional development training for the financial year ended 31
December 2022.

Ms. Gao Yuan (“Ms. Gao”) was appointed as the board secretary, the
Company Secretary and the Authorised Representatives of the
Company on 30 December 2022. The biographical details of Ms. Gao
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management”.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year. To comply with the new Listing Rules requirements regarding
the adoption of Core Shareholder Protection Standards for
shareholders’ information and protection, the Board of the Company
proposes to (i) make certain amendments (the “Proposed
Amendments”) to the existing bye-laws of the Company (the
“Existing Bye-Laws”) in order to bring them in line with the latest legal
and regulatory requirements, including the applicable laws of Bermuda
and those relating to the amendments to the Listing Rules which took
effect on 1 January 2022; and (ii) to adopt the new Bye-Laws
incorporating and consolidating all the Proposed Amendments in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the Existing Bye-Laws.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group’s strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s
latest developments and thus can assist them in discharging their
duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings and drafts of which will be circulated to all Directors for their
review, comments and approval after the meetings. The minutes books
are kept by the Company Secretary and will be open for inspection by
the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable laws
and regulations are complied with.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Jiang Chao (resigned on 25 February 2022)
Ms. Shen Leying (resigned on 25 February 2022)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ms. Gu Jing (appointed on 31 August 2022)

Mr. Cheng Yuan (appointed on 30 December 2022)

Mr. Xu Liang (appointed on 25 February 2022 and
resigned on 31 August 2022)

Mr. Liu Pengpeng (resigned on 31 October 2022)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan

Mr. Rui Meng

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business
and family or other material/relevant relationship among members of
the Board, and in particular, between the chairman and the chief
executive. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 25 to
33 under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Ming is the Chairman and
Mr. Huang Zheng is the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Company considered that the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer is clearly established.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors.

Mr. Xu Xiaonian is a famous Chinese economist and was granted the
highest award of economics study in China, the “Sun Yefang Economic
Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more than 37 years’ experience in
economics analysis.

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan is a tenured Full Professor of Accounting at the
School of Business and Management at Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He has more than 14 years of experiences of
teaching financial and managerial accounting to MBA and EMBA
students, and in executive education programs.

Mr. Rui Meng is professionally designated as a Certified Financial
Analyst by the Association for Investment Management and Research
since September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the Global
Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010. He currently acts as
independent non-executive directors for several listed companies.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of three
years and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws and the CG
Code.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference, which is responsible for, among others, identifying
suitable individuals to become Board members and reviewing the
structure, size and diversity of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 30 August 2013
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity and better succession
planning through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

The Board composition reflects the current management of our Group
and comprises seven members, including a female non-executive
Director. The Directors of the Company have a balanced mix of
experiences, including business management, property investment,
real estate development, economics and finance, risk management
and accounting and audit experiences. Furthermore, the ages of the
Directors of the Company range from 40 years old to 69 years old. The
Company have taken and will continue to take steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of our Company, including but without
limitation at our Board and senior management levels. As it is not a
single gender board, the Board considers gender diversity has been
achieved and will continue to review the Board composition.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss
and review the necessities to set measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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The Group attaches great importance to gender diversity in its staff and
management team and has established a comprehensive recruitment
system, such as eliminating gender discrimination in the recruitment
process, providing equal employment opportunities, career paths and
training opportunities for employees, and protecting the health and
safety of female employees in strict compliance with relevant national
policies. The gender ratio of the Group’s employees as at 31 December
2022 is as follows:

AEEREEREIREBBEKNMER S I
BYTRENATRRERE (It BEREERE
REMERIER - RETRHEFENRES - B
HRBEMNEIRE  YEBRRBRERAEBRE
ko REZMETINREELZE2 -BE_T_—F
TZA=T—BAKEETRMRILLHIT

Type Male Female fFid] B g
Senior management 72.7% 27.3% SRERE 72.7% 27.3%
All employees 64.4% 35.6% 2HEET 64.4% 35.6%

POLICY TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS
AND INPUT

The Company has adopted a policy to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board, and will review the implementation and
effectiveness of such policy on an annual basis, which includes:

(1)  The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring that directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which must be
accurate, clear, complete and reliable.

(2)  The Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors. The meeting should include reviewing the
performance of the Board and the flow of information of between
management and the Board.

(8) The Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

(4) The Company will, upon reasonable request, provide separate

independent professional advice to Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to perform their duties to the Company.
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Board or Board committee shall be supplied with adequate
information, in a timely manner, by the senior management, to enable it
to make informed decisions. Such information supplied shall be
complete and reliable. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the management, each Director has the right to
separately and independently access the Company’s senior
management to make further enquiries, if necessary.

Directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related
materials in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informal decisions on matters placed before it. Directors will receive a
prompt and full response to his/her enquiry, if any is raised.

In addition to convening Board meetings and Board committee
meetings, the Company also submits regular reports to all Directors,
including project expansion, reasons for changes in management
statements and major indicators, content of external announcements,
and corporate governance-related content, so that all Directors keep
abreast of the Company’s operations and development status.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
Director/taking part in business-related training/acting as speaker for
seminars and refreshed their knowledge and skills and provided to the
Company a record of training they received for the financial year ended
31 December 2022.

The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year

ended 31 December 2022 is summarized below:

BE_T__F+_A=+—HILFE BEFMH
BEX 2 EAS ISR T

Attending or
participating in
seminars/in-house HEHSH
briefing relevant BEEL
to the business, BHEERRK
regulatory updates EEREY
and director’s Hae/
Name of Directors duties EENS ARl LE
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Mr. Tian Ming v  H#RRE v
Mr. Huang Zheng v Yk v
Mr. Jiang Chao (resigned on 25 February 2022) v BBRRERZZ--_F-A-t+hA
BHE) v
Non-executive Directors: HHTEE
Ms. Gu Jing (appointed on 31 August 2022) v  BERT(RZEZZFN\A=T+—HEZfH) v
Mr. Cheng Yuan (appointed on 30 December 2022) N/A RTEE(RZE-—F+-A=1HEZT) N
Mr. Xu Liang (appointed on 25 February 2022 and GREEWN-Z-_—F-_A-+HREZRFT
resigned on 31 August 2022) v WRZEZZFNA=+—HEHE) v
Mr. Liu Pengpeng (resigned on 31 October 2022) v ML E(R=E=ZF T A=+—HEHE) v
Ms. Shen Leying (resigned on 25 February 2022) v Ry +H(R-B-—F-_A-TRERT) v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIFHTEE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian v  RUNERAE v
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan v BRETEAE v
Mr. Rui Meng v WEERAE v

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in suitable training to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Executive Committee and the ESG Committee, to oversee
different aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Rui Meng (as chairman), Mr. Chen Tai-yuan and
Mr. Xu Xiaonian. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim and
annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget, and to review the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the
interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held 2 & & — —F+= E-I— BILFE  #BZZE
meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the necessary & Eé’@f 2//\§u§ REESSZHRENEZ
financial information of the Group for committee members to consider, A& E B EE R - J,/(f—fté BekEERE =K
review and access significant issues arising from the work conducted. HETET I EELEZEKREE °
Number of

Name of Members meetings attended REHE HESBRE
Mr. Rui Meng (Committee Chairman) 2/2 NEEEE(ZEEEST/E) 2/2
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 2/2 PRZE T 2/2
Mr. Liu Pengpeng Mote 2/2 2| BiE Bie 4 A (i) 2/2
Mr. Xu Xiaonian M2 0/0 S /N S A (HE2) 0/0
Notes: fsT -
1. Mr. Liu Pengpeng resigned on 31 October 2022 and two Audit Committee meetings 1. RIS A ERN T _—F+A=1+—B&HE - REEER

were held before his resignation. EREEQGERIT2NGHE °
2. Mr. Xu Xiaonian was appointed on 31 October 2022 and no Audit Committee 2. /N iﬁ*ﬁi)ﬁ”\:?::iﬂ”ﬁ 7Jr* HEZRE RNREZ

meeting was held after his appointment.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the

following work:

—  reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June

2022;

— discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the

preparation of the 2022 interim and annual financial statements;

— reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the

financial reporting of the Company;

— recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of

the re-appointment of auditor;

— reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group

and relevant reports from external auditor; and

—  reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of

the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 121 to 133.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any matters uncertainly relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid/payable
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to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out below: AR BIAZEEN 2 Aok B2 5T R =15 AT 2 Bl 10
T
RMB’000
AR%T T
Services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers 7 EFBE S TR B S AT IR 2 AR 7%

Audit services ZE RIS 2,900
Non-audit services Mo IEAZ AR 75 (e 10
3,000

Notes: The fees for the Company’s subsidiaries’ audit services, including statutory and

non-statutory audit fee to their respective auditors and non-audit services of

RMB52,795,000, were included in legal and professional fees.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least three
members with majority of independent non-executive Directors, and an
independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (as chairman), Mr. Xu Xiaonian
and Mr. Rui Meng. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, to approve the
terms of executive directors’ service contracts, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors, and to review and/or approve matters relating to the share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held 3 meetings. At the meetings, the committee members
reviewed and determined the remuneration policies and structure of
the Directors and senior management and recommended to the Board
the proposed remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
assessed the performance of executive Directors, approved the grant
of share options to the eligible participants of the Company, approved
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme 2022, approved the service
contract of executive Director and discussed the assessment plan of
the management for the year 2022.

o HEQTE: 4
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Number of
Name of Members meetings attended REHE HESBRE
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (Committee Chairman) 3/3 BRETLELEE(ZESFE) 3/3
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 3/3 SFNF A 3/3
Mr. Rui Meng 3/3 WNEALEA 3/3

The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will
depend on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of
the Group, their duties and responsibilities, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out in
note 15 and note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors, and the Chairman or
an independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xu Xiaonian (as chairman), Mr.
Rui Meng and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are currently made available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals to
become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment
of a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy
as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for
decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as
well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities
which, in particular, are set out as follows:

(@ participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the
Board, giving the Board and any committees on which he or she
serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied
backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through attendance
and participation in the Board/committee meetings;
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(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

()  ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform
their powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@ conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality
of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also
be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an independent non-
executive Director with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
held 3 meetings. At the meetings, the committee members reviewed
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considered the election and re-election of Directors.

Number of
Name of Members meetings attended REHH HESBNE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (Committee Chairman) 3/3 FNFERE(ZESETE) 3/3
Mr. Rui Meng 3/3 GBS 3/3
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 3/3 PRI=TT I E 3/3
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ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee was established on 30 June 2021 with written
terms of reference to take over the Company’s sustainable
development supervision committee, which was established on 19
December 2016. The ESG Committee currently consists of two
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tian Ming (as chairman) and Mr.
Huang Zheng, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Xu Xiaonian, Mr. Rui Meng and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of
reference of the ESG Committee are currently made available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the ESG Committee held 1
meeting. At the meeting, the committee members reviewed and
discussed the ESG work progress in the year of 2022 and future work
plan.
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Number of

Name of Directors meeting attended EEHE HESER R
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 1/1 AR 4 (£/E) 11
Mr. Huang Zheng 1/1 =S AE 11
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 RN A 11
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 1/1 PRZE T A 1/
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 NER ST A 1/1
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE HITEES

The Executive Committee (formerly named as “Operational Committee”)
was established on 18 March 2005, was reformed and renamed to
“Executive Committee” with all of the executive Directors as its
members and a new set of terms of reference was adopted on 31 July
2013, which has been subsequently amended to reflect the powers,
authorities and discretions delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Executive Committee meets on ad hoc basis in accordance with
its written terms of reference.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 4 Board meetings were
held. All Directors were given an opportunity to include any matter in
the agenda for regular Board meetings and were given sufficient time
to review the documents and information to be discussed in Board
meetings in advance.

0 3 R

EERgRLERRE
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BIT4REH - 2RESHERSNESZRERE
FERETNACAERESE  VERETHERR
EERERBITAIEHB TR IXGERER

Number of
Name of Directors meetings attended EENE HESBNE
Executive Directors: HITESE :
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 4/4 HEAEAE (E£/F) 4/4
Mr. Huang Zheng 4/4  JEiEE4E 4/4
Mr. Jiang Chao Mete " 0/0 U R 4 Ao (WD) 0/0
Non-executive Directors: IEHITEE -
Ms. Gu Jing Nete2) 2/2 BAE £y £ (Wi2) 2/2
Mr. Cheng Yuan (Nete3d 0/0 X, JT 5 A (s 0/0
Mr. Xu Liang Nete4) 2/2 1425 S e i) 2/
Mr. Liu Pengpeng "¢ 9 3/3 2| B g 5 A= (Hiizs) 3/3
Ms. Shen Leying Mete 0/0 FR 4 2% o7 - (1) 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYIIHHITEE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 4/4 SFNE A 4/4
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 4/4 (CE o ata 4/4
Mr. Rui Meng 4/4 NERS A 4/4
Notes: BiaE -
1. Mr. Jiang Chao and Ms. Shen Leying resigned on 25 February 2022, no Board 1. BHREERBLELZITR T -_—F - -+ ABEE -
meetings were held during their tenure of office in 2022. REZT__FHEHRNESRARAELITER °
2. Ms. Gu Jing was appointed on 31 August 2022, and two Board meetings were held 2. BEZLIR-_Z-_—_F/A\A=+—HBEZE RE=-ZT
during her tenure of office in 2022. ZFNEHNESZRYRITMARE ©
3. Mr. Cheng Yuan was appointed on 30 December 2022, and no Board meetings 3. MTEER=ZTE_—F+-A=+THEZE RE=ZF

were held during his tenure of office in 2022.
4. Mr. Xu Liang was appointed on 25 February 2022 and resigned on 31 August 2022,

and two Board meetings were held during his tenure of office in 2022.

5. Mr. Liu Pengpeng resigned on 31 October 2022, and there Board meetings were
held during his tenure of office in 2022.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT GENERAL MEETING

BRER KNS HFE R

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, 1 general meeting HE-—EZ-_—F+-A=+—HIFHEE - &2
of the Company was held, being the 2022 AGM. RIBEIT—ARRAS AT _—_FREAFK
@ o

Number of
Name of Directors meeting attended BENS HE RE
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 1/1 HERELE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Huang Zheng 1/1 EAEEAE 11
Mr. Jiang Chao Mete 0/0 B EB o A (W) 0/0
Non-executive Directors: FEHITESE -
Ms. Gu Jing Mete2 0/0 B A+ (i) 0/0
Mr. Cheng Yuan Neted) 0/0 K 7T & AR () 0/0
Mr. Xu Liang M= 11 Rk wE 1/1
Mr. Liu Pengpeng Mote®) 11 2| e e £ A (Hiss) 1/1
Ms. Shen Leying Mete ) 0/0 B 46 4% o7 - (D) 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHITESE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 SFNESE A 11
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 1/1 R T A 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng 11 PRA LA 1/1
Notes: Bt eE
1. Mr. Jiang Chao and Ms. Shen Leying resigned on 25 February 2022, and no 1. BHBEERRSLTTR T - F - -+ A HEF

general meeting of the Company was held during their tenure of office in 2022.

2. Ms. Gu Jing was appointed on 31 August 2022, and no general meeting of the
Company was held during her tenure of office in 2022.

3. Mr. Cheng Yuan was appointed on 30 December 2022, and no general meeting of
the Company was held during his tenure of office in 2022.

4. Mr. Xu Liang was appointed on 25 February 2022 and resigned on 31 August 2022,
and one general meeting of the Company was held during his tenure of office in

2022.

58 Mr. Liu Pengpeng resigned on 31 October 2022, and one general meeting of the
Company was held during his tenure of office in 2022.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, uses AGM or other general meetings to
communicate with them and encourage their participation. The
chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee attended the abovementioned
general meetings to answer questions and collect views of
Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM of
the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM,
shall be called a special general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the
Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to
convene a special general meeting are set out in the document entitled
“Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.

A summary of which is also included below:

If Member(s) would like to propose a person for election as a Director
other than in a general meeting appointed for election of director(s), the
relevant Member(s) can request to convene a special general meeting
of the Company in the following manner:

(i) Members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company may send a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company to convene a general
meeting.

(i) The requisition must include the information as stated in items 1,
2 and/or the Note (where appropriate) above, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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@iy ~ The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures for appointment of Director including
the convening of a general meeting.

(iv) A general meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of the requisition. If the Board does not within twenty-one
(21) days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene a general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a general meeting, but any
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three (8) months from the said date.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT A
GENERAL MEETING

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward
a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong addressed to the Company Secretary at Unit 406, 4/F, 8
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the 2023 AGM will
be voted by poll.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The amount of any dividends that the Company may declare and pay
in the future will be subject to the discretion of the Board and will be
based upon the Group’s overall results of operation, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position, future expansion plans, amount of retained earnings,
distributable reserves and any other conditions that the Directors
consider relevant. Any declaration and payment of dividends may also
be limited by restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s
constitutional documents, the Listing Rules and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The amounts of dividend distributions that the
Group has declared and made in the past are not indicative of the
dividends that the Company may pay in the future.

The Directors may recommend a payment of dividends after taking into
account the general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and any other internal and external factors that may
affect the business and financial performance and position of the
Group in addition to the above-mentioned criteria. Any future
declaration of dividends may or may not reflect the historical
declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the
Directors.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company. As at 31 December 2022, there was no arrangement
pursuant to which the shareholders of the Company waived or agreed
to waive their dividends.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

To ensure effective communications between the Board and the
shareholders and the investment community at large, the Company
has adopted a set of shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”)
on 12 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the shareholders and the investment community
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders and the investment community may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the shareholders. The Chairman as well as
the chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee together with the
external auditor are present to answer Shareholders’ questions. The
annual report together with AGM circular is distributed to all the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Any esquires put to the Board shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 406, 4/F, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

With reference to the Policy, the channels for distribution of the
Company’s updates and putting esquires to the Board, and two-way
communication between the Company and the Shareholders at the
AGM, the Board is of the view that the implementation of such
shareholders’ communication policies is effective, and will continue to
monitor and review the shareholders’ communication policies.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the development and
maintenance of risk management and internal control of the Company
and evaluation of their effectiveness. The Company adopts a
comprehensive risk management and internal control structure to
handle and manage its risks. The Company has set up strict
procedures to ensure that no assets would be subject to unauthorized
use or disposal and appropriate accounting records are kept for the
preparation of reliable financial reports in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management,
internal control and financial control systems, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. It
discusses with the management regarding the risk management and
internal control systems to ensure they have performed their duties to
establish effective risk management and internal control systems,
which is reviewed annually. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
ensuring that the internal review function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate stand within the Company, and reviewing the
adequacy of qualifications and experience, training programs and
relevant budgets of staff in charge of accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit of the Company.

Based on the information and confirmation of the management and
internal audit department, the internal control system of the Group
covers all of its activities and transactions, and the management shall
conduct regular risk assessment (at least annually) and monitor and
report the progress of actions taken to cope with significant risks from
time to time. The Audit Committee considers that, for the year ended
31 December 2022, the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company were comprehensive and effective. The Company has
set up a supervisory and audit office which carries out audit and
supervisory work independently under the guidance and supervision of
the Board, and directly reports to the Chairman and the Audit
Committee. The accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
personnel have sufficient qualifications and experience and have
received adequate training within the review period. Therefore, the
Board considers the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company are effective and adequate.
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IMPROVING INTERNAL CONTROL MECHANISM

The Company has improved a number of systems and guidelines,
issued a number of regulation systems and management measures
such as “Management Measures on Product Differentiation Design
(CERZEEREEIEL) ), “Engineering Standardization
Achievement Documents (Standards, Guidelines) ( { TI2IZ#(L kR X
fF (FZ=% - $53|48) ) )", “Project First Opening and Delivery Special
Assessment Management Measures ( (JEH B « KNZIEEZERE
#%) )7, and further refining the operation guidelines of each module,
improving the business risk management mechanism, standardizing
business process management, improving the Company’s operating
efficiency while strengthening project progress management and
quality management, preventing project risks, achieving project
business objectives, and ensuring the stable operation of business
management.

OPTIMIZING INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES
Based on the characteristics of different risks and business segments,
the Company adopts various specific measures in respect of market
risk, financial risk, product risk, operational risk and information system
security in order to enhance the internal control standards. The
Company has also formulated the Cultural Strategy Handbook ( {3Z{t
BB F 1) ), the Landsea Brand Handbook ( {BAzF & F M) ) and
the Staff Handbook to strengthen the behavioral management and
regulatory guidance of staff.

CLEARLY DEFINING AUTHORITY OF
MANAGEMENT

Through a series of systemized and standardized measures including
the revision of Handbook of Authorities and Responsibilities ( {#& F
fit) ), the Company has strengthened the daily authorization
management and the authorization system, which has laid the
foundation of the existing authorization management system of the
Company.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

HIGHLY EMPHASIZING PREVENTION AND
CONTROL OF SIGNIFICANT RISKS

The Company attaches high importance in the prevention, control and
investigation of significant risks. Pursuant to the principle of “Full
Coverage and Comprehensive Investigation to Control Risk”, the
Company conducts investigation with focuses on major areas including
tender and procurement, housing maintenance and marketing, and
implements rectification measures against each of the problems
identified for effective prevention and solution.

Through communication with the business departments, the internal
control department classifies the various risks arising from the
company’s operation process according to “risk factors, risk paths and
risk levels”, establishing a “risk list” which is published on the “Sunshine
Landsea (’% Y BAFF) platform. It is not only an evaluation tool for audit
and supervision, but also a risk management tool suitable for use by all
staff in daily management and operation.

STRENGTHENING INTERNAL AUDIT AND
RECTIFICATION

The internal audit department of the Company has conducted audit on
the financial and internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including the financial management, budget management, cost
management, procurement management and expense management,
and provide advice on risk prevention aiming to improve systems,
standardize procedures and optimize mechanisms; provide rectification
of material internal control defects, if discovered. Improvement has
been made in response to the rectifying opinions for the year.
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FRAUD MONITORING

The Company continues to build and iteratively update the reporting

system. During the year, on the basis of the original reporting hotline,

reporting mailbox, and WeChat reporting platform, the Audit and

Supervision Department of the Company relied on the integrity culture

and the development of information tools to update the working

mechanism as follows:

(1)

Updated the internal reporting management system, and
introduced a special reporting process specification to ensure
that all reports are stored in the warehouse with traces, clear
nodes, clear circulation, and controllable timeliness;

Updated the handling methods for reporting and follow-up work,
issued “Regulations on Judicial Coordination and Unified
Management ( (El/AHB RS —EIRMIETE) )7, “Regulations on
the Management of Integrity Funds and Articles ( {BEIEE S * ¥
IREEIEMRE) ), etc., and incorporated reporting and related
work into the scope of institutionalized overall management;

Updated the reporting management information tool. Relying on
the “Sunshine Landsea (5 £EAFF)” platform, developed the
“integrity face-to-face (BRIEM¥IM)” function, using the “I have
something to say, | want to report (F B &t © FEEWR)” port as
a new form of reporting, and it was launched simultaneously on
the computer and mobile terminals.
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IMPROVING ANTI-CORRUPTION MECHANISM
AND STRENGTHENING CASE MANAGEMENT
With strict legal compliance adhering to the core value of “people-
oriented, positive and green”, all of the Company’s employees ought to
develop sound legal awareness and act in compliance with laws and
regulations. The Company has established the Code of Anti-corruption
and set up the Work Ethics Committee as the highest executive
function for the Group’s anti-corruption work, with duties mainly
including promotion of anti-corruption measures, coordination of anti-
corruption work and handling and making decisions in relation to
relevant issues. The Work Ethics Committee is chaired by Mr. Tian
Ming, the Chairman of the Board, with members comprising all
executive Directors, senior management and staff representatives. The
Company’s monitoring department is a dedicated function operating
under the Work Ethics Committee to carry out investigation in
corruption-related matters and reports directly to the Chairman of the
Company. Cases will be filed, investigated and handled in an
independent, objective and just manner. The Company has set up
reporting email, reporting hotline and WeChat reporting platform, and
announcements are made to the relevant internal and external units
and personnel. The Company encourages autonym whistleblowing,
and all such cases will be filed and investigated, while the
whistleblowers will be informed of the result under various measures
that safeguard their legal rights. The Company has zero tolerance
towards corruption. Therefore, in the event of any corruption, the
Company will impose penalty in accordance with the Code of Anti-
corruption, including dismissal and reporting to judicial authority.

Appropriate policy and supervision have been designed and put in
place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposal, ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations, maintain reliable
financial and accounting records pursuant to applicable accounting
standards and regulatory requirement on reporting and properly identify
and manage the major risks which may affect the performance of the
Group. The relevant system and internal control can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss as they are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business targets.
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The internal audit department of the Group carries out auditing work
aiming to control risks. Its annual working plan covers all major works
and procedures of the operational, business and service units of the
Group and special review will be conducted in accordance with the
requirement of the management. The results of audit shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit department will review and
follow up on issues raised during the audit to ensure effective
implementation and regularly report the progress to the Audit
Committee.

The internal audit department of the Group shall independently confirm
to each of the Board, the Audit Committee and the administrative
management of the Group that the internal control system of the Group
is sufficient and effective. The head of the internal audit department of
the Group shall directly report to the chairman of the Audit Committee,
the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the Group.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and
supervision of risk management and internal control system, and shall
regularly report to the Board and/or the Audit Committee regarding the
effectiveness of the relevant system.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the internal control system of
the Company was comprehensive and effective, and was neither
subject to any significant or major internal control deficiency nor
material issues which may affect the financial control, operational
control, compliance control and risk management function of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group issued an Inside Information Disclosure Policy in January
2022 to regulate the acquisition, dissemination and use of inside
information by employees, to prevent insider trading and other market
misconduct, and to ensure that shareholders and the public receive
comprehensive, accurate and timely information or data about the
Company’s business and its financial position. The policy sets out the
practices and procedures for monitoring business and corporate
developments and events so that any potential inside information can
be identified and reported to the Board of the Company as soon as
possible to ensure that the Board can make timely decisions on
disclosure, if required; and for taking appropriate steps to maintain the
confidentiality of inside information until such time as it is formally
released in accordance with the regulations. The Board may, where
appropriate, apply for suspension of trading in the securities of the
Company pending disclosure of inside information in order to maintain
fair trading in its securities and to address any matters about the
disclosure.
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Directors’ Report
EEYnE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45
to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
134 to 136.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend in
FY2022 (no final dividend paid for the year ended 31 December 2021).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares during the year ended 31
December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance including a fair review of the
Group’s business, a discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, future development in the Company’s business and
analysis using financial key performance indicators, are set out in the
sections headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT”, “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” in this annual report. The above sections form an integral
part of this Directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The ESG report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 containing the information required under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website and at
the section headed “Regulatory Filings” of the Company’s website
http://www.landsea.hk/ the same time as this report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the
Company is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In
addition, the Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong company
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance and therefore is subject to
the relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including
the disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions
therein.

Under the SFO, the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose
price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in properties development in the PRC
and the United States and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and the United States.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As at the end of 2022, the total number of employees of the Group
was 1,659. Employees are our valuable assets, thus, the Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the
market standard. The Group also understands that it is important to
maintain good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises
to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, the management has kept
good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with them when appropriate. During the year under review,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its business partners or bank enterprises.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitle
to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on Friday, 30 June 2023, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 27
June 2023 to Friday, 30 June 2023, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 26 June 2023.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year-end
date. The net decrease in fair value of RMB33,600,000 has been
credited directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes
19 and 20 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of RMB24,366,000
may be distributable in the form of fully paid bonus shares. Under the
laws of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus account may be
distributed under certain circumstances, as at 31 December 2022, the
balance of the account was RMB484,415,000.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Jiang Chao (resigned on 25 February 2022)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ms. Gu Jing (appointed on 31 August 2022)

Mr. Cheng Yuan (appointed on 30 December 2022)

Ms. Shen Leying (resigned on 25 February 2022)

Mr. Xu Liang (appointed on 25 February 2022 and
resigned on 31 August 2022)

Mr. Liu Pengpeng (resigned on 31 October 2022)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan

Mr. Rui Meng

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87(1), Mr. Tian Ming, Mr.
Xu Xiaonian and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan will retire by rotation at the 2023
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2), Ms. Gu Jing and Mr. Cheng Yuan
shall retire at the 2023 AGM and, being eligible, offers themselves for
re-election.

The Company entered into service contract with:
(i) Mr. Huang Zheng on 27 March 2023 for the appointment as an

executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 27
March 2023.
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The Company entered into appointment letter with:

(1) Ms. Gu Jing on 31 August 2022 for the appointment as a non-
executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 31
August 2022;

(2)  Mr. Cheng Yuan on 30 December 2022 for the appointment as a
non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing
from 30 December 2022.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
by reference to the experience, qualification, position and performance
of each Director and senior management and the goals, strategies and
performance of the Company. The remuneration also aligned with the
market practice and conditions. The Group also has in place the Share
Option Scheme 2022 and the Share Award Scheme as long term
incentive for performance.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements
in this report, respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, none of the
Directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

There was no inducement paid or receivable by Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company; nor was there compensation paid during the financial year
or receivable by Directors or past Directors, or the five highest paid
individuals for the loss of office.
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DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

() LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF
HK$0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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EERFETBRAERKRS - HER®D
SEE- ek £

RZEZZF+ZA=+—H EFFZARAETE
TERAERA AT SEFMEREE (EERESFR
HIEEBIEXVED) < ixfn - BN RESHTS - #
E*E?J?zmﬁﬁﬁﬂi?ﬂﬂﬂ%xv%%?&8"4 A
RARIRBRFzERm AR HIRBESFRAE
ﬂ%%’?ﬁ%zﬂ%ééi%ﬂﬁ'zﬁé%%ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁLAaaﬂ%ﬁqmgm
R#R  RBEEFAESITHAE AR A REER
FrzEmBRBIAT

) REQXFAEBREEIOEBLEBRZE
)

Approximate

Number of percentage in
ordinary shares total number of
Name of Director Capacity held issued shares
HERITROBH
EEgE 14 iRl 8 8 BB D
Mr. Tian Interest of controlled corporation 2,755,445,866 58.34%
R4 R EE S (Notes 1 and 2)
(fF5E1 R 2)
Beneficial owner 8,901,500 0.19%
EnEAA
Mr. Huang Zheng Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.42%
=R BEHEAA (Note 3)
(B43E3)
Ms. Gu Jing Beneficial owner 36,000 0.00%
BEZ T EmEA A
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Notes:

These include (i) 2,011,513,187 Shares held through Greensheid; (ii)
376,017,785 Shares held through Easycorps; and (i) 367,914,894 Shares
held through Landsea International.

Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn
wholly-owned by Landsea Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15%
by Nanjing Ding Chong Investment Management Consultants Ltd. (“Nanjing
Ding Chong”) and 15.85% by Mr. Tian. Nanjing Ding Chong is a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Mr. Tian is regarded as the
controlling shareholder of Landsea Group. Easycorps is a company wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Mr. Tian is deemed to be
interested in these 2,755,445,866 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

These are restricted shares granted by the Company pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme adopted by the Board on 2 July 2014. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Restricted Share Award Scheme” below.

(I) LONG POSITION IN SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2012 AND
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2022

Bt

@

B1E()2,011,513,187 1% 3% 8 Greensheid 5 8 Z A& 7
()376,017,785 1 i 1B Easycorps ¥ & 2 B 17 + % (ii)
367,914,894 % % i#8 Landsea International £ A 2 %

%o

Greensheid £ Landsea International 2= & # A& © 1M
Landsea International Bl BAF SR E 2 B A © BAFT
SEHERSEREEEERARAR(EREE]
HEH34.15% R - WHHE A% 15.85% 5 ©
ARREARLEREE=EA 2R - HEAR
18 AR BIE XA R  Easycorps BA LA BT
mEA 2 R Bt - RIBEFES REAEGKS - B
AR R 2,755,445,866 IR AR 17 #E  #EaS o

ZERMAARBARBEERN T —HFLA=
B BR A 2 B A0 2B =t 81 1% 2 IR IR 1) - A RIR
BE2B T TRGIER D 22T 8] —4& -

BE-Z-——SRREFER-F=Z

FRREMBARTZBREZFR

Approximate

Aggregate percentage
long position in total number
inthe of issued shares
Name of Director Nature of interest underlying shares (Note 1)
HERITRG
RHERERGZ BREZBANEIL
EEHH EmHE HFRAE (PfFEE1)
Mr. Huang Zheng Beneficial owner 5,000,000 0.11%
=S E EnEE A (Note 2)
(Hf3E2)
Notes: FfEE -
1. The total number of shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December 1. RZB_—F+=-A=+—8  AQENEHETK
2022 was 4,722,307,545. 1D HEA 4,722,307,545 ©
2. For detalils, please refer to the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of 2. HIEBELHARE [FBAET 8] — -

this report.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022



Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Balances and Transactions” in note 42 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, no contracts of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that none of them is engaged in,
or interested in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Balances and Transactions” in note 42 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, at no time during
the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the Controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance or any contract of significance for the provision of services
by the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group had charitable donation of RMB100,000
(2021: RMB907,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award
scheme of the Company as set out below in this report and also note
35 to the financial statements, there was no equity-linked agreement
entered into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme as an
incentive to recognise the contributions by employees and to give
incentives to retain them for the continuing operation and development
of the Group, as well as attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. The Directors strongly believe that the
continued success of the Group is closely tied with the commitment
and efforts of the employees of the Group. The Restricted Shares can
serve as an incentive to motivate them to further contribute to the
Group. The Restricted Shares to be awarded will be with reference to
the performance, operating and financial targets and other criteria
determined by the Board from time to time. The Share Award Scheme
is effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption
subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board.
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The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award &5 #2EhEt 2 2 = BIE 2 RIS EH AN A AT
Scheme were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 Juy HBEIA-T—NELA-—B Z22AERAETX [&HD
2014 and included in the section headed “Summary of Share FHE|#EE | —&1 - RFEARFIERD 2 EEFIFE
Schemes” below. Details of movement of the Restricted Shares during ~ ZI|#0°F :

the year are set out as below:

Unvested Restricted Unvested
Date of Restricted Shares Restricted Restricted Restricted
award of Shares awarded  Shares vested Shares forfeited Shares as at
Category of Restricted as at during the during the  /lapsed during 31 December  Vesting period/
awardees Shares 1 January 2022 2022 year 2022 year the 2022 year 2022  conditions
RZB==H RZBZZf
—A-B RIBIZHR RIBIZHER  RSBIZER +ZA=t-H
RRR L *EE2 %z BE2 L VS A *EE2
EREALZER R4 B 5 REIMERSD REIER D R R D R R RHMRSD SRS/ R4
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Huang Zheng 31 March 2020 20,000,000 = = = 20,000,000 Note, vesting
E=IEE A —ETF conditions (i)
EH=Er—E FRIEE - B3 J8 f6 14 (i)
Mr. Jiang Chao* 31 March 2020 10,000,000 — - - 10,000,000 Note, vesting
B A —ECTF conditions (ii)
EH=Er—E FREE ~ 5588 1611 Gil)
Sub-total of Directors 30,000,000 - - - 30,000,000
EE/E
Employee participants 19 November 2014 980,000 = - = 980,000 Note, vesting
RE2EE —T—F conditions ()
+—A+hHE BHEE ~ BRI IR A()
8 April 2016 309,750 = = = 309,750 Note, vesting
T—REF conditions (i)
mﬂ NH B EE ~ B3R 1AL (i)
31 March 2020 61,600,000 = = (1,900,000) 59,700,000 Note, vesting
—EFF Note conditions ("')
=H=F—H = R ~ 538 61k i)
Sub-total of Employee participants 62,889,750 = = (1,900,000) 60,989,750
EE28EE NG Note
LiEss
Total 92,889,750 - - (1,900,000) 90,989,750
et Note
{iEss
* Resigned as an executive Director of the Company with effect from 25 February * R - —HF-_A-+HRBBIEARARARITES
2022
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Notes:

Subject to the fulfilment of the vesting conditions, half of the Restricted Shares granted are
exercisable into Shares at HK$0.66 each, and half of the Restricted Shares are exercisable
at nil consideration. Such Restricted Shares are held by Core Pacific - Yamaichi
International (H.K.) Nominees Limited, the trustee appointed by the Company for the
administration of the Scheme, before they are vested.

The number of Restricted Shares that are available for grant under the Share Award
Scheme at the beginning of the 2022 financial year was 342,102,755 and at the end of the

2022 financial year was 342,102,755, representing approximately 7.24% of the issued
Shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

Vesting Conditions:
(i) Restricted Shares granted on 19 November 2014:
(1)  Subject to fulfilment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the

Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of two years
is required

(i)  Restricted Shares granted on 8 April 2016:
(1)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the

Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required

(i)  Restricted Shares granted on 31 March 2020:
(1)  Subject to fulfilment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the

Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER UNDER RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any disclosure
obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme was adopted and became effective upon
passing relevant ordinary resolution at the AGM of the Company held
on 25 April 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme 2012”) . Summary of
the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme 2012 were set out in
the circular to the Company’s shareholders on 22 March 2012 and
included in the section headed “Summary of Share Schemes” below.
On 1 April 2022, the Company offered to grant an aggregate of
53,300,000 share options, to a director of the Company and certain
employees of the Group (collectively, the “Grantees”) under the Share
Option Scheme 2012. Details of the grant of share options were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 1 April 2022, movement of
the share options during the year are set out as below:
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ERENEE

BiE EmRANEI318K BEZT=__F+=A
=t+—H ARARTETAFEEST -
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E-E——FNA-_+HRBETZAAFBRRBF
Ag ERBEATEREERR  BRETEELEN
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BREFESIZEZBRAMEFHINR - —Z_F=H
ZTZHHARRRE ZBEHAR T[0T E
WE|—fi - RZE-__FMA—RH  KX2QRIRE
—E - FEREFERARR —BREFRAEE
ETEE (5 [FEREA D) EHEE $£53,300,00017 i
fRHE - T HBHIRAARIBHAZS 4
A—BZRAERN  REANBREZZESFEHIIM
T~

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise options Exercised during options
price per asat Granted during  Cancelled the as at 31
Date of Share 1January  during the the 2022  during the 2022  December Vesting Exercise
Category grant (HKS) 2022 2022 year year 2022 year year 2022 period period
R® R
kSt 3 i i R i St
BRITEE -A-B ZB-ZH§ ZBIf BRI ZECZE +ASt-A
<Yl RTEH (Br) &S AR RiTRE At 8 AR 2% BEE &8
Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. Huang Zheng 1 April 2022 0.242 = 5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000  Note Note
BiEEE “E-ZEMA-H i i3
Sub-total of Directors - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
St
Employee participants 1 April 2022 0.242 - 48,300,000 - (3,000,000) - 45300000 Note  Note
EE2EE —ZT-—£mA-H s TS
Sub-total of Employee participants - 48,300,000 - (3,000,000 - 45,300,000
EES8RE
Total - 53,300,000 - (3,000,000 - 50,300,000
st
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Note:

Subject to the relevant performance target relating to the Group which is specified in the
grant letters to the respective grantees, the share options will vest on 1 April 2023 and
become exercisable from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2032. Please refer to the paragraph
headed “Vesting Conditions” for details.

The closing price of the shares on the date of grant was HK$0.220 and immediately before
the date of grant was HK$0.26.

Please refer to note 2.26 headed “Share-based Payment” and note 35 headed “Employee
Share Scheme” in notes to consolidated financial statements for the fair value as at the date
of grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted.

The number of options available for grant under the Share Option Scheme 2012 at the
beginning of the 2022 financial year was 198,660,605 and the number of options available
for grant under the Share Option Scheme 2012 at the end of the 2022 financial year was 0O
since the Share Option Scheme 2012 has expired on 25 April 2022.

Vesting Conditions:
(1)  awaiting period of one year is required

(2)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance, operation
and financial targets at the discretion of the Board

Since the Share Option Scheme 2012 has expired on 25 April 2022,
the shareholders of the Company has approved to adopt the new
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme 2022”) at the AGM
held on 30 June 2022. Summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme 2022 were set out in the circular to the Company’s
shareholders on 27 May 2022 and included in the section headed
“Summary of Share Schemes” below. No share option was granted
under the Share Option Scheme 2022 during the year ended 31
December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the number of share
options that are available for grant under the Share Option Scheme
2022 was 472,230,754, representing approximately 10% of the issued
Shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

100
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SUMMARY OF SHARE SCHEMES

Share Option Scheme 2012
“E-CFRRETE

Share Option Scheme 2022
SR CFRRETE
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B AD st BIBEE

Share Award Scheme

Bt R Rer &

Purpose

BH

Participants

Maximum entitlement

&= AR D

To grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

EAREANAEHR2EER TRRE -
Bk E%R -

ERREHAREELAR &

Directors of the Group and eligible participants, (including employee
participants, service providers and related entity participants as defined in
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules).

rEEEERAERS
%(E%ﬁj:m%ﬂﬁ‘l% %)) C

- RGHERLEREES

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options and the options granted under other schemes
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being.

REM12{EARRE - RITERBERREEL M RN 2 BRE(BRE
TERHRITEBIE) MERTRA FRITTEARAZBRDEE - T

As an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give
incentives in order to retain them for the
continuing operation and development of the
Group, as well as to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the
Group.
;§¢1Eizﬁﬁﬁ HERE RN EENF
BRENBERBEE N CRREEE—
iﬁéﬁﬂ&%lﬁé)\ﬁ

Any employee or director (including, without
limitation, any executive directors, non-
executive directors or independent non-
executive directors) of any member of the
Group.

AEBZEMKE 2 EMEEXEE (AR
BARNEMATES  FRTESLE
VIHERTES)

The Board shall not make any further award
of the Restricted Shares which will result in
the aggregate number of the Restricted
Shares awarded by the Board throughout
the duration of the Scheme to be in excess
of 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

EERIGE-IREBHIERD - X
EEREARGEBENEK L 2 RHIERD

BRBARAEREETRA1% o BYRBARR B EMERE 2B EITRAN
10% °
BRSO IAIRAT —— R R 101
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Share Option Scheme 2012
“E-CFRRETE

Share Option Scheme 2022
SR CFRRETE

Share Award Scheme

Exercisable period

Vesting period

102

A period (which may not be later than 10 years from the offer date of that
option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof
and, in the absence of such determination, from the offer date to the earlier

of:

HERBRENS - AEFAELBAMARAZHE (M EBEZBRER
ABRBESTF)  MESRBELZRE  ARHBOBREENAT IR

FHE:

(i) the date on which such option lapses under the rules of the Scheme; and
() BEZEZARNZBRERRZBH R

(i) 10 years from the offer date of that option.
(

i) EBAERNEA) A MR F

The Board has the authority to set
terms and conditions in the grant of
the options (i.e. to set conditions in
relation to the minimum period of the
options to be held and/or the
performance targets to be achieved
before such options can be exercised
and the requirement for a minimum
subscription price).

EERARERTRBEEREMNIK
ARG (BREBRFERRENR
RHR K,/ AT A BB AL
REINXRRBBAROEREARR
ERBENER) -

Unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer to
an eligible participant who accepts
an offer, there is neither any
performance targets that need to be
achieved by the eligible participant
before an option can be exercised
nor any minimum period for which
an option must be held before the
option can be exercised.

The Board may, however, at its
absolute discretion, fix any minimum
period for which an option must be
held, any performance targets that
must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled
before the option can be exercised
upon the grant of an option to an
eligible participant.
RIEZFARTELHNAEER
SEERN 2 EQF - TRIBDER
RERBRZEERTEBEREZ
APAERIMKRF AR TERE
FEATRRBMRIE 2 Bl L RF A Bk E
BB AR AR o

Al EZRAEERBEEE LA
FEBRECRENRR  BAER
ZEMKRRBEBARERGERS
BER LB RAERITEBBEA L
A AR -
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When the relevant selected grantee has
satisfied the two vesting conditions specified
by the Board at the time of making the
award, upon satisfaction of the first vesting
conditions, the selected grantee shall entitle
to the related income or distribution derived
(such as the dividend arising therefrom) from
the Restricted Shares under the award; and
upon satisfaction of the second vesting
condition, the selected grantee shall become
entitle to the Restricted Shares, the Trustee
shall transfer the relevant Restricted Shares
to that grantee.
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Share Option Scheme 2012 Share Option Scheme 2022 Share Award Scheme
S R ERREE e g |
Acceptance By remittance in favour of the By remittance in favour of the

Company of HK$1.00 by way of Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof consideration for the grant thereof
within such time, which shall not be within such time, which shall not be
later than 21 days from the offer date.  later than 21 days from the offer

date.

3 ARAIREEBR(TMFERENRE ARAREHEBAR(TFERELD
HRET21 B )X FARRIZIER1.00 BEifest21B) X F AR ZE
BTIEREREREZRE - F100BTEREREIREZKE -

Basis of determining the Determined at the discretion of the Directors, provided that it shall not be less  N/A

exercise price of than the highest of: TEA

options/purchase price  REEFEMEFRE + BFAEIRUTZ&S

of shares awarded (1) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily

BTRRETEE /1 quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the Shares on the

BIRREEE 2 KE offer date;

(1) REHRH MR BRBRERREE —FASEFROAR KD
e fE

(2) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and

@ EZEZNBHALESXR  BMRMEAREXRMERH AR

B &

the nominal value of a Share.

RINEE °

(ENES

Remaining life of the The Share Option Scheme 2012 has Remains valid and effective for 10 Remains valid and effective for 10 years from

scheme been valid and effective for 10 years years from the adoption date on 30 the adoption date on 2 July 2014, until 1
from the adoption date on 25 April June 2022, until 29 June 2032. July 2024,
2012, and expired on 25 April 2022.

T2l R ER —E-—FEREAZIEEMEN(C BRABHM(CE-—FXRA=1t BEABEH(ZET-WELA-H)EH10
Z-_EMAZTHA)RHERE B)RIMI0FENERER EEZ FAARARITAN EE-_Z_MNE+
B10F YR-Z-—FWNA-+1 Z=—F A-thB- A—H-
A&
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Without taking into account of the Share Option Scheme 2012 that has
expired on 25 April 2022, the number of shares that may be issued in
respect of the outstanding options and awards under all schemes of
the Company during the financial year was 50,300,000, divided by the
weighted average number of shares of the relevant class in issue for
the year was 1.07%.

Under the Share Option Scheme 2012, the Scheme Option Scheme
2022 and the Share Award Scheme, there are no:

(i) participants with options or awards granted that is in excess of
the 1% individual limit;

(i)  options and awards granted and to be granted to any related
entity participant or service provider in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of shares in issue; and

(i) clawback mechanism.

Saved as disclosed in this report and in note 35(c) under “STOCK
INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES”, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries had any other option schemes during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Restricted Share Award Scheme” above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company:

ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01 EACH OF THE
COMPANY

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
DR &

BEROIES 22 H

Bk B3 TR D BB R &1 K [ PR I 1 A fn 22 Bt &1
MERFTIREE SN - RARHEAH B AR RER
BEZ2EEMRY  BEARFAEETLETETRA
BA#EBEARBREAEMER 2 RHHEHFM

FERER
REZZBZZF+ZH=1T—8 ' AAAREZHFK
HEKPIECCRTFECLEIEREELMAET B
EXBEEEEETEERETZETHRAB ZER
Sh ATREBAEARA G HEAARFE TR
Rz B :

RAFEBREEOC.O1EBTHNEER

Approximate
percentage in
total number

Long Position/ Number of of issued
Name of Shareholders Short Position  Capacity Shares held Shares
HERTRG
RREE 28 "R/ KR 54 FrisRBHE AHZHBNEIL
LLandsea Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Long position Interest in controlled corporation 2,379,428,081 50.39%
RS BRH AR AR (FE1) A Rt =R R
LLandsea International (Note 1) Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 2,011,513,187 42.60%
Landsea International (3% 1) e XIS EE S
Beneficial interest 367,914,894 7.79%
EniEn
Nanjing Ding Chong (Note 1) Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 2,379,428,081 50.39%
HARRE (HE1) 5y ) X B EEER
Greensheid (Note 1) Long position Beneficial interest 2,011,513,187 42.60%
Greensheid (B3 1) e -y 3o
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Approximate
percentage in
total number

Long Position/ Number of of issued
Name of Shareholders Short Position  Capacity Shares held Shares
HEBTRG
RRHE, L8 #e/ KR L) FrisiRAEE SEZHIEIL
Easycorps (Note 2) Long position Beneficial interest 376,017,785 7.96%
Easycorps (Fff£2) 55} Ry o
Ping An Insurance (Group) Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
Company of China, Ltd. (Note 3) HE i EERER
RETZRM (EE)RHERAA
(i)
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KB Rt EERER
Ping An Life Insurance Company of Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
China Ltd. (Note 3) 55) Rt EERER
RETZABRRIKAGARAR ()
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KE Xt AR ER
Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
Company of China, Ltd. (Note 3) He XIS EE RS
BT 2B E R R B R A A (M 3)
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KE B EEER
Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. (Note 3)  Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
FRABEFRRA (FH:E3) e Rt EERER
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KE Rt EERER
Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd. (Note 3) Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
TRABEERERAR (W) R R AEES
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
*E X Bt EEER
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Approximate
percentage in
total number

Long Position/ Number of of issued
Name of Shareholders Short Position  Capacity Shares held Shares
HERTRE
REHE, &8 Be/ KR L) FrisiRA#E SEZHIEIL
Fuji Investment Management Limited Long position Beneficial interest 327,002,604 6.92%
(Note 3) ) kay oy
BERAERERAF (HiEs)
Short position Beneficial interest 327,002,604 6.92%
KB BEntts
Ting Wang (Note 4) Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 331,376,970 7.02%
T 7 (Hiz4) =y Rt EEER
State-owned Assets Supervision Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
And Administration Commission e XS EE R
of Nanjing Municipal Government
(Note 5)
HRTARBREREEEEER
Zag (fiz5)
Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. (Note 5) e RS EE R
BRTETRERREER(KE)
AR EEAA (KES)
Nanijing State-Owned Assets Investment Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
& Management Holding (Group) 59} XA E R
Co., Ltd. (Note 5)
HRMBEEEAERAEEER(5E)
BREFEAA (HE5)
Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (Note 5) Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
HRIRESEFREEAR (FE5) e Xt EEER
Nanijing Textiles Import & Export Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
Corp., Ltd. (Note 5) 8] AR R
ARAEmEL RN ERAR (HES5)
Hong Kong Newdawn International Long Position Beneficial Interest 314,507,927 6.66%
Co., Limited (Note 5) 3y Gy 3

Hong Kong Newdawn International
Co., Limited (Fi3£5)
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Notes:

1. These include (i) 2,011,513,187 ordinary shares held through Greensheid and (i)
367,914,894 ordinary shares held through Landsea International. Greensheid is
wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned by Landsea
Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong, a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian, and as to 15.85% by Mr. Tian. Therefore,
Landsea International is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Greensheid,
and Landsea Group is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Landsea
International and Greensheid, as well as Nanjing Ding Chong is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Greensheid and Landsea International pursuant to
the SFO.

2. Easycorps is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian.

3. These include (i) 327,002,604 ordinary shares held by Fuiji Investment Management
Limited. Fuji Investment Management Limited is wholly-owned by Pingan Real
Estate Capital Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Ping An Real Estate
Company Limited. Ping An Real Estate Company Limited is owned as to 49.5% by
Ping An Life Insurance Company of China Ltd. and 35% by Ping An Property &
Casualty Insurance Company of China, Ltd. Each of Ping An Life Insurance
Company of China Ltd. and Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of
China, Ltd is owned as to 99.51% by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd. Therefore, each of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., Ping An
Life Insurance Company of China Ltd., Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance
Company of China, Ltd., Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. and Pingan Real Estate
Capital Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fuji Investment
Management Limited pursuant to the SFO.

4. These include 252,608,635 ordinary shares beneficially owned by Mr. Ting Wang
(“Mr. Ting”) and 78,768,335 ordinary shares held through Ding Capital
Management Limited (“Ding Capital”). Ding Capital is wholly-owned by Mr. Ting.

5. Hong Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited is wholly-owned by Nanjing Textiles
Import & Export Corp., Ltd. Nanjing Textiles Import & Export Corp., Ltd. is owned
as to 34.99% by Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd.
is owned as to 60% by Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. and 40% by Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. are both wholly-owned by State-owned Assets Supervision And
Administration Commission of Nanjing Municipal Government. Therefore, each of
State-Owned Assets Supervision And Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government, Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd., Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd., Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Textiles Import & Export
Corp., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Hong Kong Newdawn

GEE

1. BIE2,011,513,187 &% B Greensheid T #5 5 2 L @A &
(i)367,914,894 %% i Landsea International Fri% 5 2 L iM%
Greensheid f Landsea International & & # A @ i Landsea
International HBAFFSEE 2 EHEE - S EhE RS E(H
AEREESEBNAR) REEED RIHEE34.15% &
15.85%# o B It - R IEF F & 8 & (& § - Landsea
International 118, 4 72 Greensheid Fr i3 A 2 B (5 R A 25
i BA 5% & 8 1% 17 /& 7 Landsea Intemnational & Greensheid Fit
B 2 Wtn i 7B 1 2 A K A R 5 EE AR AR Greensheid &
Landsea International A58 2 & () R # B #E s ©

2. Easycorps BHEEZEERBE Z AR

3. BI5()327,002,604 KM EEREERARARAFAZER
- BEREEEERAABFILZIPEELAERAAE
BHA MPRTHEBEAFGRATAFTLRIHERRA
REAHA - FRTBEARQAMHEFZASRER
NERATGEE 49.5% * WiFEFRIFERBIRMH AR
AHEA 3% FEFRZASZRBRENERARRPEF R
BERBEMN AR ARG H T EF 2R (EE)BHER
RAFEH99.51% ° Fit » RIFFESFRARGS - FEFZ
Rz (EE) BRHBERDA - FEFZAFSRREOERD
A RETZHERBBROHERAR  FETBHEERAD
AR FRIPEEAERAAEERAANETREETE
BRABMEA B A o

4, BRETREE(TRE]) BEEA 2 252,608,635 % @A
1% i% 38 Ding Capital Management Limited ([ Ding Capital |) 35
278,768,335 % iE@ A% ° Ding Capital 1 T Sc4E 2B A -

5. Hong Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited B3 = 47 4%
RELEORNDERARZERE - MRS REL ARG
BRARHERKESEEGRE TN RIS 34.99% s o
AREESREEREEARBERTMMERREER (&
E)EREERARER60% B REFEARTREEEREE
BER(EE)AREETAAEE 40%E - MRmEAE
EREEEZR(EE) GRETRR KRR T ERIK
BER(EE)EREEARYABRTARBRAEAEE
EEEREZEEAHES Bt REZEFRIBERD -
ERTARBNEAEEEBERZE S MATEEE
ERBEEEER(EE)AREMEAR - MRTHTERIK
BER(EE)AREETART  IRIKEEEEGRELAR
RER#HHMELARMNERRASE E %K AR Hong
Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited #5/ I % 5/ # A&

International Co., Limited pursuant to the SFO. RS ©
Name of Director Title Company
EEHE BR 67 AT
Mr. Tian Ming Chairman and president Landsea Group Co., Ltd.
ML A BERFBH BAFREERNDER AR

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors was a director or
employee of a company which had, or was deemed to have, an
interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, and no other person (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) had an interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 December 2022.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the year ended 31

December 2022 are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements. Some of those transactions constituted connected

transactions or continuing connected transactions and have complied

with the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has the following

connected transactions:

(1)

On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into the
shareholder loan framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea
Group agreed to grant shareholder loan(s) in an aggregate
principal amount of not exceeding RMB4,000,000,000 (or Hong
Kong Dollar equivalent) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries
during the two-year period up to 31 December 2017 at an
interest rate of 5.5% per annum and the amounts are interest
free since 1 January 2018. As at 31 December 2022, Landsea
International, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea Group has
granted shareholder loan to the Company which has been
settled.

Apart from the grant of shareholder’s loan under the Framework
Agreement above, Landsea Group has also granted to Landsea
Holdings Corporation, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, certain loans in an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,665,000,000 with interest rate ranging from 5.294% to
6.6345% per annum repayable in 5 years from the respective
date of drawdown. As at 31 December 2022, an aggregate of
RMB356,220,000 remain outstanding.
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BAORSHBENRAMBREMZEI2 - ETHF
ROBRAERFAFERERS - ABFT LM
HAIE 14AAZMHEBBERTE

BERXRS
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—BILFE K&£HAE
LARBEER 5 :

1) R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H KNARIEMA:F
SEETRREFIEE G ((ERHRE]) - 33
HFEEREAE-_T—tF+t-_A=1+—HZA
WMENRARRE R/ HEMNBRARRHE &
NEFE BB A REE 4,000,000,000 7T (B EE
BIT) CRRER - IREFEE55% s EREZ
T-NEF-—H-—BHBTFE RZZE==
+ZA=+t—H BFSEEZEWNBE QA
Landsea International [ 28 22 &5 () &9 B 3R B 50
BEEE -

@) BREEAERBZREBRRERIN s
E I\ A A A 2 & K B A §Landsea
Holdings Corporation # 78 & 48 %8 & A R #&
1,665,000,0007C Ky & T E K+ £ F XN F
5.294% % 6.6345% ' /A% B X BV A Bi#EET 5
FRNERE MNZT__F+_-_A=+—H #&
%A AR # 356,220,000 LI AR(EE ©

MR OEIARAT — CE SRR 109



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
£ DR &

110

On 21 December 2018, &M EAMEEHGRE AR (Suzhou
Langkun Property Limited*) (“Suzhou Langkun”) entered into
the supplemental agreements to the (i) two loan agreements
(“Loan Agreements I”) with T&BFELIZREHFR A T
(Jiangsu Guotai Huading Investment Company Limited*)
(“diangsu Huading”), being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou Langkun,
in relation to the provision of a loan of RMB285,750,000 to
Jiangsu Huading (“Supplemental Agreement to Loan
Agreements 1”); and (ii) two loan agreements (“Loan
Agreements II’) with JT#RBIZR £ RHEERE AR AT (Jiangsu
Guotai Zijin Technology Development Company Limited*)
(“diangsu Zijin”), being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou Langkun, in
relation to the provision of loan of RMB285,750,000 to Jiangsu
Zijin (“Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements II").
Pursuant to the supplemental agreements, Suzhou Langkun
agreed to adjust certain terms under the Loan Agreements | and
Loan Agreements Il. Including the loan principal of the loans
under each of Loan Agreements | and Loan Agreements Il was
adjusted to up to RMB327,270,000 for a term extended from 31
December 2018 to 31 December 2021 at an interest rate of
4.35% per annum.

On 16 December 2021, Suzhou Langkun entered into the
second supplemental agreement to Loan Agreements | (“Second
Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements I”) with
Jiangsu Huading and second supplemental agreement to Loan
Agreements |l (“Second Supplemental Agreement to Loan
Agreements II”) with Jiangsu Zijin, pursuant to which Suzhou
Langkun agreed to adjust certain terms under the Loan
Agreements |, Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements |,
Loan Agreements Il and Supplemental Agreement to Loan
Agreements Il. The terms contemplated under the Second
Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements | and Second
Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements Il are identical.
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Suzhou Langkun is owned as to 55% by the Group, and as to
22.5% by each of Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin. Therefore,
Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin are regarded as connected
persons of the Company at subsidiary level. The transactions
contemplated under the Second Supplemental Agreement to
Loan Agreements | and the Second Supplemental Agreement to
Loan Agreements Il (the “Transactions”) constituted connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the Directors have approved the Transactions and the
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
terms of the Transactions are fair and reasonable, the
Transactions are on normal commercial terms or better and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
Therefore, the Transactions are subject to notification and
announcement requirements but are exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

On 31 May 2022, () L/EGHEERER AR (Shanghai
Langyu Commercial Management Limited*) (the “Purchaser”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; T &2 2=
BIHEHFR AT (Jiangsu Guotai Huading Investment Company
Limited®) (“diangsu Huading”), a 22.5% owner of the Target
Company (as defined below); and &/ BAH & 3 AR A 7]
(Suzhou Langkun Properties Company Limited*) (the “Target
Company”), a then indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement (“Equity
Transfer Agreement I”) in relation to the acquisition of 22.5%
equity interest in the Target Company (“Equity Interest I”); and (i)
the Purchaser and /L& B & £ e B ZER AR AR (Jiangsu
Guotai Zijin Technology Development Company Limited*)
(“Jiangsu Zijin”), a 22.5% owner of the Target Company,
entered into an equity transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer
Agreement II”) in relation to the acquisition of 22.5% equity
interest in the Target Company (“Equity Interest IlI”, together
with Equity Interest |, collectively, “Equity Interests”).

As each of Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin holds 22.5% equity
interests in the Target Company and is a substantial shareholder
of the Target Company and a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules,
the acquisition of the Equity Interests by the Purchaser from
Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin (the “Acquisition”) constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company.
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Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement [, the Purchaser
agreed to purchase, and Jiangsu Huading agreed to sell, the
Equity Interest |, representing 22.5% of the entire equity interest
in the Target Company, for a consideration of
RMB41,377,657.50.

Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement I, the Purchaser
agreed to purchase, and Jiangsu Zijin agreed to sell, the Equity
Interest II, representing 22.5% of the entire equity interest in the
Target Company, for a consideration of RMB41,377,657.50.

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Target Company had
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

1. Nanjing Xinbeisheng Investment Management Limited (Fgm%% &
BRI EEEARAG) (“Xinbeisheng”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as landlord and Nanjing Landsea
Apartment Commercial Management Limited (F R BA:5 B R £ E
BB R AF]) (“Nanjing Landsea Apartment’), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shanghai Landsea Apartment Industry Development
Co., Ltd* (L/BMAFFE EX R BR A F)), as tenant, entered into
the rental agreement (the “Rental Agreement”) on 1 February
2017, pursuant to which Xinbeisheng agreed to lease the
property at the 11 buildings at Chang Ying Cun, Mai Gao Qiao to
Nanjing Landsea Apartment for a term of 15 years from 1
February 2017 to 30 January 2031.

Nanjing Landsea Apartment is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Landsea Group, and therefore a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Landsea Group.

The rental paid/payable to Nanjing Landsea Apartment under the

Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB2,688,000 (tax inclusive).
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On 28 December 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Nanjing Landsea Property Management
Limited* (AR EEEER A ) (“Nanjing Landsea
Property Management”) (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) entered into the framework agreement (“New
Properties Services and Properties Consulting
Agreement”), pursuant to which Landsea Group and its
subsidiaries shall provide property management services and
property consulting services to the Group for a fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
at the respective annual caps of RMB75 million, RMB78 million
and RMB82 million.

The services include (i) property management services, including
but not limited to, preliminary property management services for
property projects prior to their delivery to the property owners,
management services for property units and car parking lots
which remain unsold and house repairing services; (i) sales
agency services for residential properties, commercial properties
and car parking lots of property projects which remain unsold;
and (iii) pre-delivery property consultancy and management
services, including but not limited to, preliminary planning and
design consultancy services and display units managements
services.

Nanjing Landsea Property Management is indirectly held as to
49.5% by Mr. Tian, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tian.

The actual transaction amount under the New Properties
Services and Properties Consulting Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is approximately RMB36,474,000.
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On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the project
management services agreement with Landsea Group (“2020
Project Management Services Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group shall provide development and construction
management services and sales agency services to Landsea
Group and its subsidiaries for a term of three years commencing
from 28 December 2020 to 27 December 2023. The respective
annual caps are as follows:

RZZ=ZTF+=A=+N\R ' NARHERAF
SEFVEEEERGHR(=S=-SFEAR
BERKHZE]) Bt AEBBEERR
SEREMBARREEEEERE B
—ZEF+-_RA=-+/N\BE=ZZE=_=F+=A4
Zt++tR - BHI=F c BEAFELRNT :

Period Annual cap
HARE FEE LR

RMB’ million

AREBET
28 December 2020 to 27 December 2021 —ZE-_ZF+_A -+ \HE-_ZT-_—F+_-_A_++H 85
28 December 2021 to 27 December 2022 —ZE——4+—-A -+ \BE-T-—F+-H—++H 85
28 December 2022 to 27 December 2028 @ —ZE-—HF+_-A-+/\HE - T - =F+-A-++H 85

The actual transaction amount under the 2020 Project
Management Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 is approximately RMB60,154,000.

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the green
architecture technological services agreement (“2020 Green
Architecture Technological Services Agreement”) with
Landleaf Architecture Technology, pursuant to which Landleaf
Architecture Technology shall provide green architecture
technological services to the Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 at the
respective annual caps of RMB25 million, RMB28 million and
RMB31 million.

The actual transaction amount under the 2020 Green
Architecture Technological Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is approximately RMB27,502,000.
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Connected Parties Relationship

@M

(i)

(i)

Landsea Group through its direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, is interested in 2,365,876,081 Shares, representing
approximately 50.1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Mr.
Tian, the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, is
beneficially interested in 50% of Landsea Group, Landsea Group
is regarded as an associate of Mr. Tian. Landsea Group, being
the controlling Shareholder of the Company and an associate of
Mr. Tian, is regarded as a connected person of the Company;

Nanjing Landsea Property Management is indirectly held as to
49.5% by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Nanjing Landsea Property
Management is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Tian; and

As Mr. Tian also controls approximately 65.67% of Landleaf
Architecture Technology, Landleaf Architecture Technology is
regarded as an associate of Mr. Tian. Landleaf Architecture
Technology, being an associate of Mr. Tian, is also regarded as a
connected person of the Company.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under each of (1) the

Rental Agreement, (2) the New Properties Services and Properties

Consulting Agreement, (3) 2020 Project Management Services

Agreement, and (4) 2020 Green Architecture Technological Services

Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company and are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual

review requirements but exempt from independent shareholders’

approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2022. Below was set out in the letter from the auditor containing their
findings and conclusions of the review in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this report.

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  for the transactions that involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
conducted, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

(8) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not carried out, in all
material respects, in accordance with the Relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditor’s
attention that causes the auditor to believe that the amounts of
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual caps set by the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and
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@iy in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board would like to confirm that the connected transactions and
the continuing connected transactions carried out during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and as disclosed in this report have
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

On 22 November 2021, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement”) with Landsea
Green Life pursuant to which, the Company agreed to engage Landsea
Green Life and its subsidiaries (“‘Landsea Green Life Group”) as the
exclusive sales agent to provide property agency services for the
properties held by the Group from the date immediately after the
fulfilment of all conditions set out in the Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement to 31 December 2023. Pursuant to the Exclusive Sales
Agency Agreement, Landsea Green Life Group shall pay the Group
Security Deposit (as defined below) for the performance by Landsea
Green Life Group of its obligations under the Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement.

Under the Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement, the Group on one hand
and the Landsea Green Life Group on the other hand will enter into
individual property agency agreements under which it will be agreed on
certain pre-determined minimum prices for the properties held the
Group for sale by the Landsea Green Life Group as the exclusive sales
agent and Landsea Green Life Group shall not sell the relevant
properties at less than the relevant pre-determined minimum prices.
Landsea Green Life Group shall, within fifteen (15) business days of the
execution of the relevant individual property agency agreement, pay
the Group a refundable security deposit (“Security Deposit”) equal to
the pre-determined minimum prices for the properties subject to the
relevant individual property agency agreement. The proposed annual
caps for the aggregate Security Deposit paid by Landsea Green Life
Group under the Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2021 and for the two years ending 31 December 2022
and 2023 are RMB4 million, RMB6 million and RMB3 million
respectively.
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The Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of Landsea Green Life at its extraordinary
general meeting held on 31 December 2021.

No Security Deposit received under the Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, Landsea Green Life is indirectly held as to
40.20% by Mr. Tian. The Security Deposit constitute continuing
connected transaction of receiving financial assistance from a
connected person under Rule 14A.24(4) but is exempted from the
notification, annual review, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.90.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchased from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 16.17% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchased from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 5.25% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 1.2% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 0.4% of the Group’s total revenue.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their
close associates, nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

On 30 September 2022, the Company commenced an exchange offer
(the “Exchange Offer”) for the outstanding principal amount of
USD169,400,000 10.75% senior notes issued by the Company due 20
October 2022 (the “Notes Due 2022”"). The Company had also
repurchased the Notes Due 2022 in the aggregate principal amount of
US$30,600,000, representing 15.3% of the aggregate principal amount
of the Notes Due 2022 originally issued prior to commencement of the
Exchange Offer. As of the extended exchange expiration deadline,
Notes Due 2022 amounting to USD132,216,000 (representing
approximately 78.05% of aggregate principal amount of outstanding
Notes Due 2022) were validly tendered for exchange and accepted
pursuant to the Exchange Offer.

Pursuant to the Exchange Offer, on 20 October 2022, the Notes Due
2022 in an aggregate principal amount of US$132,216,000 were
cancelled, and the Company issued USD118,994,400 in aggregate
principal amount of new U.S. dollar denominated senior notes due 20
October 2024 with an annual interest rate of 10.75%. Further details of
the aforesaid Exchange Offer are disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 30 September, 19 October 2022 and 21 October
2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other
than the trust of the share award scheme adopted on 2 July 2014) did
not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
when the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending
holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of
the Company or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility
for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or
dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR

The Company has not changed its external auditor during the past
three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2023 AGM for the re-appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Landsea Green Management Limited

Huang Zheng
Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Landsea Green Management Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of Landsea Green Management
Limited (formerly known as “Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.”, the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 134 to 345, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that as at 31 December 2022, excluding
those balances of Landsea Homes Corporation (“Landsea Homes”, the
Company’s listed subsidiary), the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB3,698.85 million and the Group’s current
borrowings amounted to RMB1,488.90 million while its cash and cash
equivalents was RMB391.00 million only. On the same date and up to
the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements, the
Group was in default of a senior note (the “Defaulted Senior Note”) with
principal amount of USD36.97 million (equivalent to RMB254.05 million)
because of non-payment at its due date. Subsequent to 31 December
2022, the Company received a letter formally demanding the Group to
settle principal and interest with total amount of US$3.70 million
(equivalent to RMB25.43 million) under the Defaulted Senior Note or
otherwise a winding-up petition may be presented to the court. In
addition, the Company incurred a net loss of RMB2,453.75 million and
net operating cash outflow of RMB484.92 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. These events or conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

The key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate;

° Impairment assessment of contract assets and financial assets at
amortized cost;

° Assessment of net realizable value of properties under
development and properties held for sale.
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNES AR ERREET SR

Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate
KB AR« SERERBENFNSE

Refer to note 4(a) (Classification of subsidiary, joint venture and
associate), note 17 (Interests in associates), note 18 (Interests
in joint ventures) and note 40 (Acquisition of subsidiaries) of the
consolidated financial statements.
B2REAVBRERWT 40 (MBRAR &8 RERBER
Ao ) ME7 (B E AR ER) - M 18(RE =
PERRER) R 40 (BB AR -

The Group invests in certain properties projects with various
other parties under various arrangements. According to the
terms of these arrangements, the Group classifies the
investments into subsidiary, joint venture or associate. As of
31 December 2022, the Group had interests in associates and
interests in joint ventures with carrying amount of
RMB1,186.69 million and RMB2,194.26 million, respectively.
At the same time, the Group had non-wholly owned
subsidiaries with total non-controlling interest of RMB1,976.50
million.
ERERBEETHETAAMIARESE TYWHRIEER - R
BRERENGK - BEXERBZERESBRMEBLRA -
AEELEIBMERR - BHEZTZ—_F+=ZA=+—
H:X BSERBEQGAIRaECEEZ  REESRIR/A
R#1,186.69B B TR ARK219426 B 8T - Ak © &H&E
EEAFZ2ENBLAA  HIFEZGIMEZEBEA/ARY
1,976.50E & TT °
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We understood, evaluated and tested the relevant control
over the Group’s classification of subsidiary, joint venture and
associate.

BT R - FHE R
NEIMD AR AR EGIEE -

=
55

MELR - EbEREE

For material investments, individually or in aggregate, we
challenged management’s assessment and performed the
following audit procedures:

HREARKRE (ARKEF)ME - RPIEREEEONE - I
ETATEEER

We examined the legal documents associated with the
investments that the Group made during the period, to
determine the key terms, including rights of the investors,
terms of shareholders’ agreements, dispute resolution
provisions, termination provisions, governance structures and
profit-sharing arrangements, and assessed these key terms
against the classification criteria.

HMELE SEREHAMERERBEEXHE - LETE
BRIET - BREREENEN - IRERIGRORR - FRER
R~ BRI - BURRBRAMBE S KL - ARERD R
AEBIFHh 5% S AR 15X

o

When there have been subsequent changes to the
shareholders’ existing agreements or governance structures,
we assessed whether these changes would impact the initial
assessments by management.
ERRREHZREREBLERGEZIE - LATEZE
BHEETE T EEEMYLTE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ES AR ERREET SR

The classification and change of classification of the Group’s
investment involves significant judgement in determining the
levels of control and influence based on a number of criteria.
The classification has significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
consolidated balance sheet due to their effect on consolidation
scope.
ERERENRZEENEE TR RNEHIERLE HE
TORESBREHFREZRHE - DBEREEGSSBENT
R HY BSRENGETHEERAGAREEAEBER
BEARTE -

We, therefore, consider classification of subsidiary, joint
venture and associate a Key Audit Matter.

Bt - HFRAHEBAR - fEERRBERTNSBEHAR
e SR

We sought for written confirmations or communicated verbally
with the contract parties, on a sample basis, to confirm the
contract clauses and completeness of contracts and
agreements we obtained and whether there are any
subsequent supplementary contracts and agreements or
amendments.

HPEEMERE MERRERT A7) ABEEE - = RERHLM

REMA WRGENERREEY  URESERERTA
R BARET -

We assessed whether the considerations paid for acquisitions
or received from disposals of investments represent the fair
market value in an arm’s length transactions when there was
acquisition or disposal.

B TRRBRER X NI HEERERFWRHNKERS
RERBESHEN R FRZHHAFTE -

We evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of the classification and carrying values of subsidiary,
joint venture, and associate against the accounting standards
adopted by the Group.

BMEET ESEHMEBEAR 6ECERBEAANS
BRERHENRBEREAR EXERMANSTEINEE
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Based on the procedures performed, we consider the
judgements made by management regarding the classification
of subsidiary, joint venture and associate were supported by
the evidences we obtained.

BRBEMATIEF  HARK/EREBHNEBLAR a8 0ER
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNES AR ERREET SR

Impairment assessment of contract assets and financial assets at amortized cost

ENEBERZBHK L BHEMEENBETE

Refer to note 3.1(b) (Credit risk), note 5.2 (Assets and liabilities
related to contracts with customers) and note 27 (Trade and
other receivables, prepayments and deposits) of the
consolidated financial statements.
E2HREMBHRERMEIA0)(FEERR) « MiEs5.2(HEE
FPERNBHANEERAR) RMFE27 (FEUER TR & H fth B UL
;o ERRKRIES) o

As at 31 December 2022, net book value of the Group’s
contract assets and financial assets at amortized cost included
in trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits was
RMB278.70 million and RMB3,183.82 million respectively. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognized net
impairment losses of RMB479.22 million against contract
assets and financial assets at amortized cost included in trade
and other receivables, prepayments and deposits.

RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—H  BEEFABRBKEIRERE
ftb JEUWCRRIE ~ FENFIE RIRE W& KB E RIZRE K AT 2
HemEESRR/RARKE2.787EIT R ARKES1.8382(18 7T °
BHE-T-—_F+-A=+—HILFE X EBESERTAE
B R e B At FERRIE ~ FEN FIE RIZ & M6 K& BE Mg
HKAGENSREERABMEBEFEARKL.7922(F

JC °

To measure the expected credit loss, contract assets and
financial assets at amortized cost included in trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and ageing profiles.
The expected credit loss is estimated based on historical data,
including the past settlement profile and incurred credit loss in
observed period, with adjustment to reflect forward looking
factors.
RETEEHERER - sEARKRR R E M EYKRIE - A
TENMREEHNEBEREBERNATENSREESRER
RN EERRFEKREBELETSR - BHEHIBRRE
BEr BT BRATEEBARBEANEENEER
B WHETAZRURMATEERESE -
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We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of impairment assessment
of contract assets and financial assets at amortized cost
included in trade and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

B APIRE AR B IR B AT A B URBR R N Eo A B USRI - TR IR
RIES WA NEERMREIHK AN 2N SR E ERER G
WEREHI R AT @2 - WiERE BT T IR E R E A
EAREREZNKY - fIEMIZE TBIE 29REH
REERFEAIMFNOTE  AEERERRANEFR

B -

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
impairment provision against contract assets and financial
assets at amortized cost included in trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process.

ARl B 1 BRfE FT A FE MR BR B e A FE U ERIE ~ FETSRIE
REEHNENEERREBENAGTENSREENRERE
R EER - UFEEEE AT BRI -

We evaluated and tested the controls over the Group’s
assessment of impairment provision for contract assets and
financial assets at amortized cost included in trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits.

BFRHE AR EREHET ARBKERR S E b EUIE
BNREREENENEEREEBENAGTENEREEN
BT AR o

We agreed historical data, including past settlement profile,
incurred credit loss, on a sample basis, to the accounting and
operating records of the Group.

BAIAMERN SR - RBELHE  BRAEEERBR - B
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ES AR ERREET SR

For contract assets and financial assets at amortized cost
included in trade and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits with objective evidence of impairment, the Group
assessed the credit risk and the expected credit loss by
considering the nature of transactions, relationship with the
debtors and their financial position, etc. on an individual by
individual basis.

SEB BEREE R ARUYER S e YRR - TS
REEENEHNEERREBEHEKEAAENEREE
mE X BEEERERRHNE - EEKANBEERKEMN
BARERE - @RFHEERRERRFARERAX -

We consider impairment assessment of contract assets and
financial assets at amortized cost included in trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits a key audit matter
because the estimation of the impairment provision is subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to the impairment assessment of contract assets and
financial assets at amortized cost included in trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits is considered
significant due to the complexity of the models, subjectivity of
significant assumptions used, and significant judgements
involved in selecting data.

HAIR A AR R E A EYRIE - FANRIERIRSH
BREERRBHAAAEBENEREENREN G RERSE
AERE REARRERGENGFFESETHENL - ARRK
ANEMREE  FIEAEARRKNEEEREIRK Y K
BREERRBHNAIAENEREESTRAL - HARA
ST AEUWAR SR - H b FEUGRIE « AN FUIE R IR KRR ERT b
FEERNEFRERE -

We assessed the economic indicators selected by
management in determining forward looking factors based on
our understanding of the relevant industry and with reference
to external data source.

BPRBE AT ROERE - WREIBEBERR - FHEE
B ETERETE BTG 1 A =R B R R AB181Z -

We assessed the key assumptions and data used in
management’s estimate of expected credit loss by agreeing
information to relevant supporting documents and comparing
with relevant data of companies in the same industry for
individually assessed trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables, on a sample basis.
HfRAmER A A RS ERREEAN B SR —
TRRARMEBEEREERNFANEKER - aNEERH
b EMKIA B EE TR S AR BB B A FAEERE
KA 2RRREUE -

We tested, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of contract
assets and financial assets at amortized cost included in trade
and other receivables, prepayments and deposits.
FAPTHBOR B AT A W BR TR S E A FEUCRRIE - TR RIE R 4%
SHENEE KRR EN AT EN SR EENREER ©

We tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
impairment provision of trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables.

BAPRIBET AU R TR S B Ath FE YRR ~ TR FRIE RIS &Y
BRBERBEHEKNAGTTENEREERER BTENEMN
R -

Based on the procedures performed, we consider the
estimate used in the assessment of impairment provision of
contract assets and financial assets at amortized cost
included in trade and other receivables, prepayment and
deposits were supported by the evidences we obtained.
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Assessment of net realizable value of properties under development and properties held for sale

FAZR W) 3 R 15 E 85 & W) ¥ 1Y o] B 5 F (B S

Refer to note 4(c) (Critical accounting estimates and
judgements for net realizable value of properties under
development and held for sale), note 25 (Properties under
development), note 23 (Properties held for sale), note 17
(Interests in associates), note 18 (Interests in joint ventures)
and note 9 (Expenses by nature) to the consolidated financial
statements.
ﬁ%@ﬁé%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ«@(%%¢%¥&%¢%§%¥W
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Properties under development (“PUD”) and properties held for
sale (“PHS”) held by the Group’s subsidiaries, joint ventures
(“dV”) and associates are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value (“NRV”).

B BEXENEAR 68X (AaERE]) KBE QAR
BRREDYE((FHEDYER]) RMFEHEDR ([FHEHE
W) RO R AT R (E ([RTEERRE ) BUEETE -

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of the
Group’s PUD and PHS amounted to RMB8,959.23 million and
RMB699.33 million respectively and total provisions for decline
in the value of PUD and PHS of RMB777.81 million were
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
RZBZZF+A=+T—08 - EBS5ERZEPWEREE
HEMENRIFES B R AKKES9.5923 T kAR
6.99331E T - ARERYERIEHEMENEETRERE
BBERARBIIIBIRT K EXERE8E-_ZT__
TZA=tT—HIEFENGE T EKRRER
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We obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and assessment process of NRV of PUD and PHS
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty, complexity,
subjectivity and other inherent risk factors.

B TREEBERMEDYEISEHEM RN ZIFE
B A BRI N AT AR - WWiREE BIAFT T HEMRRE - &
M TEUREMANERRREER  SHEERERRAN A
fE@Be o

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of NRV
of PUD and PHS, on a sample basis, to consider the accuracy
of management’s historical assessment.

HAPIHERT L R Y R R FHEHE MR AT 2R HER AT
FHEAER - AEREEENBET L ER -

We assessed the independence and competence of the
external valuer which issued valuation report.
BT A A ERE IR ERD A B M RAE T -
We assessed NRV assessment methodology adopted by
management and the external valuers based on our
knowledge of the Group and real estate industry experience.
BPREYE SRENTHREEMETESR FHEEE
K HNER A B AN AT ER A ) AT B3R R BT 70 ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matter
ARESE

1B A B

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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As of 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of Group’s
interests in joint ventures and associates were RMB2,194.26
million and RMB1,186.69 million, respectively, and the Group
recognized share of net loss of JVs of RMB303.77 million and
share of net profit of associates of RMB31.51 million
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022. The total
provisions made against PUD and PHS held by the Group’s
JVs and associates during the year were significant to the JVs’
and associates’ profits/losses and their net results attributable
to the Group.

RZEBE__F+_HA=+—81"

11.8669187T ' M EEERBE-ZT-_—F+=-A=+—H
LEFEDRRREEEG S XEEIBFEAREKI.0377E TR
FEEB L ARMFARKESIS1IEETL - TR BEELE
TERBERARIFENREPYERISEHEMEIEL OB
BREHAELERBERANET BB RSB
R ESENEEFEBEEAX -

Management involved independent external valuers for the
assessment of certain PUD held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
JVs and associates.

EREZEBEIINEGEMESR ESEMBLR -
ERBERRIRFANE TRAZET YR E TS -

BED

We consider assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS held by the
Group’s subsidiaries, JVs and associates a key audit matter
because it involved critical accounting estimates on future
selling prices, estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale, and the judgements and
estimates are subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty.
BHMEE BERENEBAR A2 CERBEQGMFARR
BERYMERFEHEDENAIZHE FETHAURESS
B HARESRERREE - Gt T TRANETIHER
RN BR G ET RAE REAFESE M TRETE
f o

We assessed the appropriateness of the estimated future
selling prices of PUD and PHS, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to recent transaction prices of similar
properties in the same project or relevant locations, and
based on our knowledge of the property markets of the
relevant locations.

HFIEHEFRE P Y EREHEMEN G RREBHES
M ERBEMER S EERTE R AR E R
UMEREER 5 ERETHE - WERBFIE BRI ERN
METIGE T R o

We conducted site visits to PUD, on a sample basis, to
observe the development progress.
B ERERYEETEMRE - ESRRAZERE -

We evaluated the reasonableness of the estimated future
costs to completion of the PUD and costs necessary to make
the sale, based on the actual development costs and selling
expenses incurred and the completion status of the
properties, taking into account the latest development
budgets provided by management, the current market data
and the past history of the similar projects.
BPRBERELANRERAREEERURYETTIE
N WERINEBEBIRHOSFHAEIRE - BRAIMSHEIER
BOUEERBERSE - SHERZEPYEOME RKTIAAR
NIHEMRMBRAARNEIEN

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management’s estimates applied in estimating the NRV of
PUD and PHS held by the Group’s subsidiaries, JVs and
associates were supported by the evidence we obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in
Landsea Green Management Limited 2022 Annual Report (the “annual
report”) other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other
information including the chairman’s statement and management
discussion and analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The
remaining other information, including the corporate information, major
events and accolades of Landsea Green Management Limited in 2022,
biographical details of directors and senior management, corporate
governance report, directors’ report and the other sections to be
included in the annual report, is expected to be made available to us
after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the
annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to Audit Committee
and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S. C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

n\/]'i ﬁq&ﬁn%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E—T - —F+ - A=+—HIFE

For the year ended

BZEUTAHILEFE

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

—E-CF T

+=ZA=+—HA T+ZH=1+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BsE AR®T T ARET T

Revenue W A 5 14,018,521 8,076,070

Cost of sales and services SHE R AR K A 9 (12,664,689) (6,406,4083)

Gross profit EF 1,353,832 1,669,667

Other income Hibzs 7 28,181 103,209

Selling expenses HEEMA 9 (694,776) (485,646)

Administrative expenses THEM 9 (893,237) (1,283,155)
Net impairment losses on financial and TRIRENEERBEBE

contract assets FE 3.1(b) (479,215) (275,028)

Fair value losses — net AR EEBIEFE 10 (60,110) (5,632)

Other losses — net H A EEFRE 8 (342,522) (93,215)

Operating loss KEEE (1,087,847) (369,800)

Finance income EURGT N 11 4,849 18,227

Finance costs 81 7% & A 11 (391,166) (253,943)

Finance costs — net B1 7% & FF 58 11 (386,317) (235,716)

Share of net profit of associates FEAGES = A a)F m A 17 31,507 31,482

Share of net (loss)/profit of joint ventures FEIE & L% (B18), %A 18 (303,767) 67,124

Loss before income tax FRETB B ATES 18 (1,746,424) (506,910)

Income tax expenses e & A 12 (707,328) (189,281)

Loss for the year FEEE (2,453,752) (696,191)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e m R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE—ZT -~ +_A=+—HILtFE

For the year ended

BZEUTHHILEFE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E - —F
+=A=+—-H +ZHA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
tiEzs ARBT T AREETTT
Other comprehensive income Eﬂ’géﬁ Yz
Items that may be reclassified to AJREEF S E B A E A
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — MBI EERE N R
foreign operations 454 84,135
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EEH S HEEEm AR
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — BEBRARRMBEFI
foreign operations attributable HEBEAMNERE5
to the Company (93,577) 23,675
— Exchange difference on translation of — BERIEESI SRS
foreign operations attributable HINEBEENELZTE
to non-controlling interests 128,226 (25,889)
— Revaluation gain on the property — BTEE  ITREREERS
transferring from property, REMMENMEEHFE
plant and equipment to
investment properties - 1,289
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEYES - NERBIEA
for the year, net of tax 35,103 83,210
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2HEEIEASE (2,418,649) (612,981)
prrgammaRan —— —Z2ogel  BeR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

R AT AR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-_—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended

BZEUTHAHIEEE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-CF T
+=ZA=+—HA T+ZH=1+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR®T T ARET T
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: FE (518) FHERERN :
— The shareholders of the Company — RRRIEER (2,588,642) (777,504)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIE AR RS 134,890 81,313
(2,453,752) (696,191)
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit FEXHE(ER) FBEESBERN :
for the year attributable to:
— The shareholders of the Company — AR AIRRE (2,681,765) (668,405)
— Non-controlling interests — JEFE I R R 263,116 55,424
(2,418,649) (612,981)
Loss per share attributable to the EEAARATRREN
shareholders of the Company for FESRER
the year (expressed in RMB (UAEBRAREIIR)
per share)
Basic loss per share SRR EAEE RMBARYT RMBARMT
13 (0.569) (0.169)
Diluted loss per share SRFEER RMBAR#¥7t RMBARKIT
13 (0.569) (0.169)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

maEEAMER

As at 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-_—F+_H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
t=A=+—-8 +=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
gz ARET T ARETFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties B 19 332,500 687,500
Property, plant and equipment TEE - TR ERE 20 186,319 201,044
Right-of-use assets EREEE 21 113,414 89,085
Interests in associates i N L= o 17 1,186,685 1,263,464
Interests in joint ventures REEEMER 18 2,194,260 2,538,674
Trade and other receivables, JFEE L R R % L At MR
prepayments and deposits AR EIZES 27 34,164 280,690
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTS T EE 33 283,051 709,043
Goodwill [EES 22 478,041 155,928
4,808,434 5,925,428
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale FESHEME 23 699,332 479,426
Properties under development B EIME 25 8,959,234 11,402,110
Inventories E1F 24 30,059 32,320
Contract assets BREE 5.2 278,697 318,822
Trade and other receivables, JFEE L AR R R L Ath P MR
prepayments and deposits FENRIBERES 27 3,891,475 5,440,451
Financial assets at fair value through AR EAEBEN
profit or loss ERMEE 28 - 63,747
Restricted cash XEHRE 29 67,505 189,739
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRRSEEY 29 1,252,056 4,031,310
15,178,358 21,957,925
Total assets EEHAE 19,986,792 27,883,353
MRgOEEARAT —— k- wrn G



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

GeEERRE

As at 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-_—F+_H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Lz ARETR ARETT
LIABILITIES &8E
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Trade and other payables JE 1~ BR B N L A AP 3R 30 338,389 251,004
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAREBER ABRDN
profit or loss THRAE 31 10,272 50,103
Advance from lessees R EEME AR 42 - 23,106
Lease liabilities HEERE 21 84,112 56,417
Borrowings &0 32 5,836,754 4,650,617
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEPGTHAR 33 191,015 186,855
6,460,542 5,218,102
Current liabilities REBE
Trade and other payables JEAST BR 30 K E 4t FE AT 3R 30 8,231,904 8,565,304
Financial liabilities at fair value through BARBEFABSNEHARE
profit or loss 31 315,931 -
Advance from lessees DYERES N OE TN 42 - 2,692
Contract liabilities BHBE 5.2 201,268 4,029,269
Lease liabilities HEBRE 21 36,659 37,555
Borrowings fE 32 1,494,321 3,839,002
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFTS I B E 552,809 610,167
10,832,892 17,083,989
Total liabilities EEHE 17,293,434 22,302,091
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SeEERME

As at 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-_—F+_H=+—H

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
t=A=+—-8 +=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBT T AREFIT
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable to EEAERATRRNERR #E
the shareholders of the Company
Share capital fi& A 34 38,702 38,702
Reserves HE 36 678,158 3,885,805
716,860 3,924,507
Non-controlling interests JEFE Il 1 A 2 37 1,976,498 1,656,755
Total equity ERAE 2,693,358 5,581,262
Total liabilities and equity SERERAE 19,986,792 27,883,353

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 134 to 345 were approved by the
board of directors on 31 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf.

Ting Ming
FHEA
Director

EF

Huang Zheng
=
Director

EF

LR S B E R BRERBEME —GRE -

F1B4E45ETH MM IEHRERER T —_=F= A
—t+—HREZRIE  YRATATREEZRE -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
or o A AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE—ZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the shareholders

of the Company
BBRAARRE
Non-
Share controlling Total
Capital Reserves Total interests equity
JErE I
BRA ] st i R
(note 34) (note 36) (note 37)
(Hi3E34) (Ht3E36) (FizE37)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
irsx ARETT ARETT AREFRT ARETT AR%TR
At 1 January 2021 R-B-_—-%—-HF—H 38,702 4,944,784 4,983,486 511,653 5,495,139
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR) /7B - (777,504) (777,504) 81,313 (696,191)
Other comprehensive income Hn2EKE
Revaluation gain on the property BREE  TREEHE
transferring from property, BYERAEMER
plant and equipment to MEBMANE
investment properties - 1,289 1,289 - 1,289
Exchange differences on translation  #E /BN EHE L
of foreign operations e R =% - 107,810 107,810 (25,889) 81,921
Total comprehensive (loss)/ EERH(FR)/WE4HE
income for the year - (668,405) (668,405) 55,424 (612,981)
Movement of employee share EERMNEERE
trust account 35 - (31,078) (31,078) - (31,078)
Employee share based compensation {2 2 ik 2R 35 - 13,868 13,868 - 13,868
Transfer the shares to employees A R R E S
related to share based =R
compensation 35 - (8,653) (8,653) 46,515 37,862
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeBEH B A A 37 - - - 50,000 50,000
Distribution to non-controlling IR I R
interests 37 - - - (24,839 (24,839
The Spin-off and Separate Listing FRERAH LB T
of US operations 39 - (245,090) (245,090 1,018,002 772,912
Dividend & 14 - (119,621)  (119,621) - (119,621)
Subtotal of transactions with HERERZ S /M5t
shareholders - (390,574) (390,574) 1,089,678 699,104
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%
+=B=1+-H 38,702 3,885,805 3,924,507 1,656,755 5,581,262
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

AMEAEE R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_HA=+—HIEFE

Attributable to the shareholders

of the Company
BREREADARR
Non-
Share controlling Total
Capital Reserves Total interests equity
FFEEHI
e 4] st i MR
(note 34) (note 36) (note 37)
(Ff=E 34) (Bt 36) (Ft=£37)

Notes RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
MiE  AR®TR  ARETR AR®Tn ARETR AR%TR

At 1 January 2022 RZE-Z%#—-H-H 38,702 3,885,805 3,924,507 1,656,755 5,581,262

(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR) /7B - (2588642  (2,588,642) 134,800 (2,453,752
Other comprehensive income Hitt2m S
Exchange differences on translation &GN 7K & 4 )

of foreign operations [N ZE5E - (93,129) (93,123) 128,226 35,103

Total comprehensive (loss)/ EERE(FR)/WE4HE

income for the year - (2,681,765)  (2,681,765) 263,116 (2,418,649)
Movement of employee share EERMOEIRE

trust account 35 - (1,267) (1,267) - (1,267)
Employee share based compensation (& £ IR AESREN 35 - 6,734 6,734 - 6,734
Transfer the shares to employees 5 Bk ERMmES

related to share based B

compensation 85 - (11,116) (11,116) 30,045 18,929
Repurchase of shares by a subsidiary - F1/8 2 71 = &R 7 36 - 33,322 33,322 (101,760) (68,438)
Retirement of shares of a subsidiary ~ HiB 2 Al {pE ™ 36 - (92,789) (92,789) 92,789 -
Acquisition of non-controlling W BE JEE M R

interests 36 - (23,990) (23,990) (58,765) (82,755)
Distribution to non-controling mFEE R 2 2R

interests 37 - - - (370,026) (370,026)
Disposal of shares of a subsidiary ~ HEHE R AR 36 - (436,776) (436,776) 464,344 27,568

Subtotal of transactions with BRERZ &t
shareholders - (525,882) (525,882) 56,627 (469,255)

At 31 December 2022 Rn
=[E 38,702 678,158 716,860 1,976,498 2,693,358

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read & il 45 & HE 2 B4 B 3% 2 B Ba I BT 53— 0F 538 -
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

el ainE R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE—ZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BZEUTHAHLEFE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—F
+=A=+—-8 +=-A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR®T T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETEHNEESRE
Cash generated from operations REMBHRE 38 298,263 (2,159,036)
Taxes paid BEAHIE (266,815) (529,559)
Interest paid BEfFIE (516,363) (505,312)
Net cash used in operating activities LS T I 2 0 F 5 (484,915) (3,193,907)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNHRERE
Interest received BERFE 66,158 167,617
Capital injection to joint ventures RNEELHETE (1,150) (103,933
Capital injection to associates REEE N R EE 17 (2,305) (122,152)
Collection of investment in associates W B B R BRI E 14,250 =
Dividend from joint ventures RESEPENRE 6,527 290,549
Dividend from associates REHERRRE 7,480 178,900
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HENRBARATSKIA -
net of cash and cash equivalents HkRRe KREEEY 41 91,858 -
Proceeds from partial disposal of shares HoHESEDERGATSHKIE
of joint ventures 151,625 7,000
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERANEBET AEBRY
at fair value through profit and loss S REE EATS IR 31(b) 67,321 -
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, A CE L IENGI N E
net of cash and cash equivalents HNBIRERIRESEEY 40 (1,666,732) (193,876)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment &S T8)E - T &R & (8,505) (22,668)
Proceeds from disposal of property, METHE - THESE
plant and equipment Fr1S 5078 421 351
Acquisition of financial assets at WHBIR A R EEF AR R
fair value through profit or loss SREE - (63,747)
Funding to related parties mIfEEE 5 B E 42(i) (80,971) (250,091)
Collection of funding to related parties W el R a5 IR E € 42(i) 77,914 679,863
Advance to non-controlling interests M FE{ZE & M i 2 2 50 - (23,463)
Repayment from advance to e [B] 1] FE 42 1) 14 A 2o 3R
non-controlling interests 195,501 91,939
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZE (FTH) B s FE
investing activities (1,080,608) 636,289
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

GEBEmER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE—ZT -~ +_A=+—HILtFE

For the year ended

BZEUTHHLEFE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
+=A=+—8 +=-A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE AR®TF T AREETTT
Cash flows from financing activities METENERERE
Proceeds from borrowings EEVIECEeE 38 2,342,525 6,061,404
Repayment of borrowings EEER 38 (3,500,470) (4,116,744)
Repurchase of shares of subsidiary EEA By NG Er) (68,438) -
Proceeds from related parties R B B 5 B PTG R 42()) 191,454 214,300
Repayment to related parties m) A B 77 12 5K 42() (234,982) (401,679)
Contribution from non-controlling interests JEPEH R EE - 460,757
Distribution to non-controlling interests M FE4 I M RE RS 0 R - (24,839)
Proceeds from disposal of shares of ENELIEHENBE L NHE
a subsidiary without losing control Mt A R PTG IB 36 303,242 -
Dividends to shareholders of the Company 2 ft4A2A ﬂ%%ﬁ’]ﬂx% 14 (200,000) (68,208)
Principal elements of lease payments HENTAE 38 (36,788) (23,638)
Shares bought back for employee iE BB MH1E u%ﬁ% e
share trust 35 (1,267) (31,078)
Repurchase of private warrants B B FL 55 R AR 7B 31 (64,487)
Consideration received for restricted PR Hl 1 AR B2 E 2
share award scheme ERE 35 - 6,109
Proceeds from financing from third party JK BE=AEBSMSRE 336,243 -
Settlement of financial liability EESRIAE 38 (426,749) (531,623)
Acquisition of minority interests H&E% AN et (82,755) -
Payment for financing related SN RERBEXRHRES
restricted cash - (89,743)
Decrease of restricted cash IR IR S Rk 53,967 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BETE (), Frig
financing activities o FB (1,388,505) 1,505,018
Net decrease in cash and HEeERRESEEY
cash equivalents WD REE (2,954,028) (1,052,600)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A— Emﬁi&ﬁﬁggw 4,031,310 5,131,678
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GINEES [EE SR 15 ) = E 174,774 (47,768)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-ZA=+—HHEER
31 December BEZEEY 29 1,252,056 4,031,310

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _EillARE IR &7 = 5= & BLBE I P 5 —
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

PFBIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A S i 31 Y 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE—ZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Management Limited (formerly known as
“Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.”, the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. On 9 August 2022, the name of the Company was
changed from “Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.” to “Landsea
Green Management Limited” pursuant to a special resolution
passed by the shareholders of the Company. The addresses of
its registered office and principal place of business are Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda and Room
406, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong respectively.
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (‘HKEX”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group
is principally engaged in development and sales of properties,
provision of management services and leasing of properties. The
Company’s subsidiary, Landsea Homes Corporation (“Landsea
Homes”) was listed on Nasdaqg on 7 January 2021.

The immediate holding company and the ultimate controlling
company of the Company are Greensheid Corporation, a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and
Landsea Group Co., Ltd. BAFFSE A AR AF], a company
established in the People’s Republic of China, the “PRC”)
(“Landsea Group”), respectively. The ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian”), a
director of the Company.

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Renminbi
(“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 20283.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R BT R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_HA=+—HIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 XEEHERE
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the REIANGEIERRTERN T ES RS
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These RTX - BRBAFHBEI  FRRERFTIR
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, NEBFEERER ANEBHNTIFRREIE
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the ARABIREKEBAR] -

Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 RHEEE

(a) Compliance with Hong Kong Financial (a) BTFEBHBHREER([EBUH
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong WREED ) REBEVIF622E L
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622 of the A ([B B D BRI
Laws of Hong Kong) (“HKCO”)
The consolidated financial statements of the Group REBNGEMBHRREIZRBRES
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and B F5 sy &5 YE Bl 2 B8 N Bl 601 B9 3%
disclosure requirements of HKCO. BRIG AR -

(b) Historical cost convention (b) ELAFEH
The consolidated financial statements have been iRE TSR AR IR 2 B AN E
prepared under the historical cost convention, except mEl EETEREERKRENLY
for certain financial assets and investment properties ¥R AREBEFERIN

measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity B A BB IR E AR B B 15
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical HRAFERETHARSA T B
accounting estimates. It also requires management BENATERRN SRS BRA
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying RRERHE - S REEHE xS
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving B EE S RS
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas BHRRIEEEAREZ LG ESHE
where assumptions and estimates are significant to R4 E -

the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
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(c) Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2022, excluding those balances
of Landsea Homes Corporation (“Landsea Homes”,
the Company’s listed subsidiary), which was
managed separately for liquidity management
purpose, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by RMB3,698.85 million and the
Group’s current borrowings amounted to
RMB1,488.90 million while its cash and cash
equivalents was RMB391.00 million only. On the
same date and up to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements, the Group was in
default of a senior note (the “Defaulted Senior Note”)
with principal amount of US$36.97 million (equivalent
to RMB254.05 million) because of non-payment at its
due date. Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the
Company received a letter formally demanding the
Group to settle principal and interest with total
amount of US$3.70 million (equivalent to RMB25.43
million) under the Defaulted Senior Note or otherwise
a winding-up petition may be presented to the court.

Due to the slowing down of Mainland China property
market since second half of 2021, the Group’s China
operations had experienced a decline in the business
of property development and the related pre-sales
volume and collection of pre-sale proceeds reduced
significantly in 2022. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group incurred a net loss of
RMB2,453.75 million and reported a net operating

cash outflow of RMB484.92 million.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_HA=+—HIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)
The above conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going

(c)

concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group

will have sufficient financial resources to continue as
a going concern. Certain plans and measure have
been formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressure and
to improve its cash flows which include, but not
limited to, the following:

U)

(i)

(i)

The Group will continue to actively adjust sales
and pre-sale activities to better respond to
market needs, make efforts to achieve the
latest budgeted sales and pre-sales volumes
and amounts, and enhance collection;

The Group will maintain continuous
communication with the major constructors and
suppliers to arrange payments to these vendors
and meet all of the necessary conditions to
launch the pre-sale and to complete the
development of properties on schedule;

The Group is actively negotiating to reaching
agreements with the holders of the Defaulted
Senior Note. At the same time, the Group will
closely monitor and ensure compliance with
financial covenants and other terms and
conditions of the other borrowings, including
timely repayment of principal and interests of
the borrowings. In addition, the Group has
been actively negotiating with certain financial
institutions so that the Group can timely secure
project development loans for qualified project
development and secure or extend other
borrowings through pledge of equity interests in
certain subsidiaries;
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c) Going concern basis (Continued)
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V)

(vi)

The Group has obtained a borrowing facility of
RMB750 million from its ultimate controlling
company, Landsea Group in March 2023,
which have a term of 24 months from the date
of first drawn down;

The Group has been in contact with potential
buyers to dispose of certain investment
properties held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
and equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates which hold investment properties. In
addition, the Group will continuously seek
dividends and advances from certain joint
ventures and associates according to those
projects’ pre-sale and cashflow conditions; and

The Group will also continue to speed up the
collection of its trade and other receivables and
will also continue to take active measures to
control administrative costs.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow

projections for a period of 12 months from 31

December 2022 and are of the opinion that, taking

into account the above-mentioned plans and

measures, the Group will be able to generate

sufficient funds to finance its operations and to meet

its financial obligations as and when they fall due

within twelve months from 31 December 2022.

Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is

appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial

statements on a going concern basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_HA=+—HIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether management of the Company will
be able to achieve its plans and measure as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon the
following:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

successfully adjust sales and pre-sales activities
to achieve budgeted sales and pre-sales
volumes and timely collection of sales
proceeds;

successfully arrange payments to constructors
and suppliers on schedule and meet all of the
necessary conditions to launch the pre-sale
and complete the development of the
properties on schedule;

successfully reach agreements with the holders
of the Defaulted Senior Note and comply with
financial covenants and other terms and
conditions of the other borrowings, successfully
and timely secure or extend the loans from
financial institutions when necessary;

successfully draw down necessary funding
from the borrowing facility granted by the
ultimate controlling company;

successfully dispose of certain investment
properties held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
and equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates which hold investment properties,
and timely receive the proceeds; as well as
successfully receive dividends and advances
from certain joint ventures and associates; and

successfully generate operating cash flows
through speeding up the collection of trade and
other receivables and controlling administrative
costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

150

(c)

(d)

Going concern basis (Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve a combination of the
above-mentioned plans and measures, it might not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or revised standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards are
mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2022:

° Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combination — Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5

o Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before intended use — Amendments to HKAS
16

° Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a

Contract — Amendments to HKAS 37

o Reference to the Conceptual Framework —
Amendments to HKFRS 3

° Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_HA=+—HIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(d) New and amended standards adopted by the

(e)

Group (Continued)

The standards, amendments and interpretations
described above are either currently not relevant to
the Group or had no material impact on the Group’s
financial information.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published that are not mandatory for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2022 and relevant to the
Group and have not been early adopted by the
Group.

Standards, amendments
and interpretations

R - SR RE

2 FESHBERBE®)

21 REEBEE)

(d) FEBMFHLGFETRASISETEE
(%)
ExFt R - sk kAR AR
AEBEEEREAEEHMBERYL
BERFE -

(e) [FARETRAHIFETER R ZFE

ETEEI LR - REEQSE
AEREBEEG BERAR-F
oA BRBNTERFER
Bl AR AR A B A AR B
EIEATERM

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

R BER

Z BRI
FEHBEXR

HKFRS 17
BRI B REERIFE 175
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

KRB,

Insurance contracts

Classification by Borrower of a Term Loan that

1 January 2023
—ET-_=%—H—H
1 January 2023

Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

EREREELR (ZTTF)

fE SRR 12 2 RAEIE (A0

—E2-=F—H—H

EHEFETHE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
G ERIE1R K
BN mEERBERER
F25% (&)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BB g ERIESE (Eok)

SEERAEKE

BEHERTER

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

1 January 2023

—E-_=F—AF—H

1 January 2023
—E-=%—A—H
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
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POLICIES (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(e) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

Standards, amendments
and interpretations

R - SR RE

Fr-A=+—RIFE

FESHBERBE®)

21 REEEE)
(e) KIRMBIFATERIRBE(E)

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

HELT BEAR
ZEBRIRN
FEHBEX

Amendments to HKAS 12

EH@HEAE128 (B2k)

Amendments to IAS 1

REERE1R (B)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BBV ISREERFE1098 &
EE g ERE28% (B

The above standards, amendments and
interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

HREE -RZHELENEENAGEHEREDN
IR TR

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

= 1§§7\¥Eﬁ3/}lb§b A‘Z?’E/}IL@

Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture

KREFEMEHBENRNAE SR HDN
BEHENHE

periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_HA=+—HIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:HBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 SUBSIDIARIES 22 WEAF

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations under common control

The Group incorporates the financial statement items of the
entities or businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined from the
date when the entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognized in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

154

Business combinations under common control
(Continued)

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income
include the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated.

Business combinations not under common control
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under common control by
the Group (refer to note 2.7).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
balance sheet, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE—ZT -~ +_A=+—HILtFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

ASSOCIATES

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
note 2.5 below), after initially being recognized at cost.

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint ventures or
joint operations depending on the contracted rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see note 2.5 below), after initially being recognized
at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

EQUITY ACCOUNTING

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of net loss in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.
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